
 
 

SCRUTINY : REGENERATION AND 
PUBLIC PROTECTION MEETING 

 
2.30 pm TUESDAY, 14TH JANUARY, 2020 

 

COUNCIL CHAMBER 
 

A Pre-Meeting will take place in Conference Room 1 at 2.00 pm.   
This Meeting is for Committee Members only  

 
 

Please note that today’s Meeting will be recorded.  
  

This recording will not be broadcast on the Authority’s internet as it will only be used for 
training purposes by the Democratic Services Department. 

 
The Public Seating areas will be in view of the Camera and, by entering the Chamber and using 

the Public Seating Area, Members of the Public are consenting to being filmed and to the 
possible use of those images and sound recordings as outlined above.   

 

 
 

This Agenda has been prepared by the Democratic Services Department. Any 
member of the public requiring information should contact the department on (01685) 

725284 or email democratic@merthyr.gov.uk. 
 

Any reference documents referred to but not published as part of this agenda can be 
found on the Council’s website or intranet under Background Papers. 

 

AGENDA 
 

1. Apologies for Absence   

2. Declarations of Interest (including whipping 
declarations)  

 
 

 

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


 Members are reminded of their personal 
responsibility to declare any personal and 
prejudicial interest in respect of matters contained 
in this agenda in accordance with the provisions of 
the Local Government and Finance Act 1992 
relating to Council Tax, the Local Government Act 
2000, the Council’s Constitution and the Members 
Code of Conduct 
 
Note: 
 

(a) Members are reminded that they must 
identify the item number and subject matter 
that their interest relates to and signify the 
nature of the personal interest and 

 
(b) Where Members withdraw from a Meeting 

as a consequence of the disclosure of a 
prejudicial interest they must notify the 
Chair when they leave 

 

 

3. Homelessness Strategy Update   

 To consider report of the Interim Deputy Chief 
Executive 
 

5 - 14 

4. Corporate Self-Evaluation - Question 2 (Provision 
and Service Delivery)  

 

 To consider report of the Interim Deputy Chief 
Executive 
 

15 - 62 

5. Work Programme 2019-2020   

 To consider the attached report 
 

63 - 74 

6. Scrutiny Referrals, Feedback and Follow Up 
Actions  

 

7. Reflection and Evaluation of Meeting   

 To receive an update from the Chair 
 

 

8. Any Other Business deemed urgent by the Chair  
 
 
 
 
 

 



  
COMPOSITION: Councillors:  J Amos (Chair) 

                     G Lewis (Vice-Chair) 
  
 Councillors: M Colbran, L Davies, S Thomas and 

K Gibbs 
 
Co-optee(s): H Hopkins, H Jackson, H Powell and 
M Ellis 

  
together with appropriate officers 
 

 
 

If you would prefer a copy of this agenda in another language please contact 
democratic@merthyr.gov.uk or telephone 01685 725284 

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 

 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE REPORT 

 

 

 

 

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 

Homelessness Strategy - Update 
 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 This report will update members of the committee with the progress made by the 

Housing Department in relation to the Homelessness Strategy Action Plan that 
accompanied the homelessness strategy ratified by Full Council in December 2019. 

 
 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 
2.1 To note the content and raise any queries 
 
2.2 To provide feedback on the work undertaken to date and to provide suggestions or 

comments relating to the remaining stages of the work required in the Homelessness 
Strategy Action Plan. 

 
 
 

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 This report focusses specifically on the work undertaken and emerging outcomes for 

the Homelessness Strategy Action Plan. The Action Plan outlined the following 
objectives: 

 

 Increase awareness of homelessness and support available 

 Improve prevention and early intervention activity to prevent homelessness 

 Ensure there is appropriate accommodation for people who are homeless or at risk 
of homelessness 

Date Written 15th November 2019 

Report Author Cerys Clark 

Service Area Housing 

Committee Date 14th January 2020 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



 Ensure there’s appropriate support available for people who are homeless or at risk 
of homelessness 

 Maintain and develop partnership working and strategic direction 
 
3.2 This report will outline the progress achieved in regards to these five outcomes 

focussing on those where the target date was prior to December 2019. 
 

4.0 WHERE WE WERE  
 
4.1 The Housing (Wales) Act 2014 placed an obligation on Local Authorities to carry out 

a review of homelessness in their area and publish a strategy by December 2018. 
We completed this exercise and published our strategy within the timeframe set out. 
The key issues identified as part of this review were: 

 
4.2    Affordability: The private rented sector in Merthyr Tydfil is becoming increasingly 

unaffordable for households reliant on Housing Benefit or universal Credit to pay the 

rent. 

 

 Figure 1:  Rent shortfall if in receipt of full LHA rate 

 

        

One Bed
under 35

One Bed over
35

Two Bed Three Bed

Average Rent 375 375 459 522

max LHA 208 293 349 380

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

 
 

4.3 Figure 1 shows monthly rent amounts following the introduction of Universal 
 Credit, those  dependent on benefits now receive their payments monthly. The 
 monthly rent shortfalls are show below: 
 

Property Type Monthly Shortfall 

One Bed under 35 £167 

One Bed over 35 £82 

Two Bed £110 

Three Bed £142 

  

Page 6



4.4 Analysing these shortfalls using average Universal Credit Rates, the remaining 
 income households have for the month is as follows (i.e. money to pay for essential 
 living costs- food, travel, energy etc.) 
 

Property Type Monthly Income after 
housing costs 

Weekly Income after 
housing costs 

One Bed under 35 £117 £27 

One Bed over 35 £235 £54 

Two Bed £568 £131 

Three Bed £767 £177 

 
4.5 Welfare Reform: A 2016 report by Sheffield Hallam University found that by 2020/21 

the average annual loss of income for a working age Adult in Merthyr Tydfil would be 
£470 (Beatty et al 2016: 19). This equates to the 17th largest loss of income for the 
UK as a whole. The high level of impact of Welfare Reform in Merthyr Tydfil has 
been attributed to the fact that nearly 25% of the population aged 16-64 claim 
working age benefits (Welsh Government 2014). The loss of income is not 
distributed evenly across the Borough.  

  
 
 Figure 2: Average annual income loss per household by 2020/21 
 

 
 
 
4.6 There is a significant shortage of one bed accommodation available in the social and 
 private rented sector. The properties are available in the private rented sector require 
 bonds, payment in advance, references and come with a rental value of £60-£70 
 which is totally unaffordable for anyone under 35 years old and on Universal Credit. 
 
4.7  The vast majority of homelessness is alleviated by the Housing Solutions Team by 

securing a housing association property for the client.  The numbers are increasing 
and are probably unsustainable.  

Page 7



4.8 Service demand is increasing year on year – coupled with an increasing number of 
 complex cases, means that the Council’s ability to meet its statutory obligations is 
 being increasingly difficult with current resources. 
 
4.9 Merthyr Tydfil has the fifth highest number of citizens in prison of all 22 LAs. The 

three  cities are top then Flintshire then Merthyr Tydfil – with 250 citizens in prison 
as of  June 2018. In 2018/19 Merthyr Tydfil had the third highest number of 
presentations from prison leavers homeless on release. Only Cardiff and Swansea 
were higher. Point 6.6 outlines work we are doing to tackle this disproportionate 
number of offenders.  

 
4.10 Housing Need – it is clear that the demand for one bed accommodation is 

outstripping supply. The low numbers of affordable and available one bed 
accommodation in the private rented sector means that the Council are increasingly 
over reliant on social sousing to successfully discharge our prevention and relief 
duties. This is unsustainable. 

 
  Figure 3 – Housing Need for general purpose one bed accommodation 
 

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

180

Housing Need 5 73 119 76 40 6 82 24 153 52 17

Bedlinog
Cyfarthf

a
Dowlais Gurnos

Merthyr 

Vale
Park

Penydar

ren

Plymout

h
Town

Treharri

s
Vaynor

 
 

4.11 Rough Sleeping - is the most acute and visible form of homelessness. For the last 
two years, the Welsh Government has required local authorities to conduct a count 
of rough sleepers. For a two week period in the autumn, questionnaires are sent to 
third sector and voluntary organisations in the borough known to engage with rough 
sleepers, to establish how many individuals they are engaging with and where they 
are bedding down for the night. This information subsequently informs a mandatory 
(snap shot) one night physical rough sleeper count in November each year. Places 

Page 8



identified, through intelligence, are visited and rough sleepers engaged with and 
encouraged to access support services. 

 
4.12 There is a clear rise in the number of rough sleepers found on the one night count in 

the borough. This trend is a national phenomenon, with cities experiencing far 
greater increases in rough sleeping than Merthyr Tydfil. Some local volunteer 
organisations suggest the one night count approach, significantly underestimates the 
true numbers of regular rough sleepers. This may be due to the fact that the local 
rough sleeping population fluctuates throughout the year and is dependent on a wide 
range of factors such as:  

 

 Weather 

 The ability to stay with friends 

 Prison sentences 

4.13 Reliance on Temporary Accommodation - Our bed & breakfast use is increasing 
over time. Since the introduction of the Housing (Wales) Act 2014 our use of B&B is 
steadily increasing. 

 
 Figure 4 – Increasing Use of B&B Accommodation 
 

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

180

200

Number of placements 33 42 88 106 126 190

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20

 

 
The percentage increase between 2017/18 and 2018/19 was 19%. Our projected 
number of placements for 2019/20 are 190 based on the number of placements 
made in the first six months of this financial year. This equates to a 51% increase in 
placements. As a Local Authority we have a duty to provide interim accommodation 
for anyone where there is reason to believe they are priority need. Those individuals 
presenting are becoming more complex and have multiple needs. The results in 
more being assessed as likely to be priority need and this has an impact on the level 

Page 9



of placements into B&B accommodation. Work is being undertaken to address this 
which is outlined in section 6.5 of this report. 
 

 

5.0 AIMS AND OBJECTIVES 
 
5.1 The key findings of the homelessness review fed into the development of the 

following aims and objectives 
 
5.2  Aims 
 

 To reduce the number of households at risk of homelessness 

 To reduce the number of households who become homeless 

 To reduce rough sleeping 
 

5.3  Objectives 
  

 Increase awareness of homelessness services and support available 

 Improve prevention and early intervention activity to prevent 
homelessness 

 Ensure there is appropriate support available for people who are homeless 
or at risk of homelessness 

 Maintain and develop partnership working and strategic direction 
 
 

6.0 WHERE WE ARE NOW 
 
6.1  Our successful rate of prevention is continuing to improve even though there has 

been an increase in presentations. 
  

 Households 
threatened 

with 
homelessness 

Households 
with a 

successful 
outcome 

Prevention 
Rate 

Welsh 
Prevention 

Rate 

2016/17 102 63 62% 62% 

2017/18 114 60 53% 66% 

2018/19 175 99 57% 67% 

 
The main reason for presenting as threatened with homelessness in 2018/19 was 
loss of rented or tied and rent arrears in the PRS. 

 
6.2  We have seen a significant increase in the number of households presenting as 

homeless 
 

 Homeless 
Households 

Households 
with a 

successful 
outcome 

Relief Rate Welsh relief 
Rate 

2016/17 210 76 36% 41% 

2017/18 239 79 33% 41% 

2018/19 301 94 31% 40% 

Page 10



6.3  The key information to explain why Merthyr Tydfil’s prevention rate and relief rate is 
 lower than the Welsh average is: 
 

 71% of presentations to the service are single people (2018/19) 

 The Local Housing Allowance (LHA) rate for a single person under 35 years 
of age is only £48.  This is the housing costs they will receive towards private 
rented accommodation. A typical one bed flat or bedsit in Merthyr is between 
£60 - £70 p/w. Therefore, the private rented sector is unaffordable for all 
under 35s who are not working. 

 We have only been able to rehouse 7% of our one bed need and this coupled 
with the lack of affordability for single people impacts the number of homeless 
presentations we are currently seeing 

  
6.4   The housing department has now merged with supporting people to enable better     

partnership working and collaboration with support services needed to assist 
households who are homeless or threatened with homelessness.  

 
6.5  As part of the objective to ensure there is appropriate accommodation available we  

have commissioned and progressed the following additional accommodation options 
 

 Housing First for Adults – Accommodation with no preconditions for our most 
complex entrenched rough sleepers. This is funded by a grant from Welsh 
Government and the Salvation Army are the support providers. This will provide 
four units of accommodation in partnership with MVH and MTHA.  

 Housing First for Youth – Accommodation with no preconditions for our most 
complex young people 16-24. This is funded via a grant from Welsh 
Government Wales and West are providing the accommodation, which will be 
four flats and sleep in support as needed. Llamau will be the support provider 
and the first young people are due to move in, in the New Year 

 A four bed HMO in lieu of B&B. We have also commissioned an additional 
four bed HMO to provide further interim accommodation in lieu of B&B 

 As part of the regional commissioning of the hostel we are looking to partner 
with an RSL to purchase and convert a building to provide six units of 
supported accommodation. In addition the RSL’s are also being asked to look 
at options for a further four units of accommodation. These units will be used to 
provide more psychologically informed accommodation for young people. This 
is not additional units it is to replace Chaplins as its location is no longer 
appropriate 

 
6.6  We have commissioned the following projects to provide more support options for 

applicants who are homeless or threatened with homelessness. These also meet our 
objective to improve prevention and early intervention. 

 

 Early intervention and prevention officer. This is Welsh Government grant 
funded post which aims to provide housing advice and assistance outside of 
the 56 day threatened with homelessness statutory trigger. This work is done in 
partnership with the RSL’s, Housing Benefits, Children’s Services, and the 
youth services. This is seeing high quality outcomes and is meeting the grant 
aims of preventing homelessness as early as possible.  

Page 11



 Assertive Outreach Officer. This is a supporting people funded post. This post 
is to support individuals who are rough sleeping in the borough to assist them in 
accessing other support agencies and housing. They will also assist with the 
co-ordination of the winter night shelter. 

 Adult mediation worker. This post is supporting people funded. The aim of this 
post is to provide mediation for single people over 21 who are at risk of 
exclusion from the family home. It is hoped that this will result in fewer 
presentations from people actually homeless as a result of familial or intimate 
relationship breakdowns. This worker will also undertake home visits for prison 
leavers to provide mediation work with their family with the aim of them 
returning to the family home on release rather than present as homeless. It is 
hoped that this work will reduce the numbers of prison leavers presenting in 
crisis as actually homeless on release. 

 Resilience work in the hostel provided by Mind and supporting people funded. 
This project aims to assist individuals with poor mental health to build their 
resilience and provide counselling to assist them with trauma they may have 
experienced resulting in poor mental health. 

 All housing solutions officers have attended training on psychologically 
informed environments and we are now looking at ways to embed the principles 
into the housing solutions service. 

 
6.7  Much of the work that has been undertaken over the last twelve months has been to 

get services established. As a result, there is no performance data on each individual 
service available. Once the services are embedded the monitoring data provided as 
part of the grant allocation and data included in the WHO12. This will be monitored 
on a quarterly basis with regular reports on progress to the strategic housing 
partnership. The Strategic housing partnership ensures that partnership working and 
strategic direction is maintained.  

 
 

7.0 FUTURE LEVELS OF HOMELESSNESS 
 
7.1 Homelessness is predicted to continue to increase. Based on the figures so far in 

2019/20 our end of year figures are: 
 

 Households 
threatened with 
homelessness 

2018/19 175 

2019/20 to date 100 

2019/20 projected total 235 

 
 The projected figures are based on an average increase of 34% over the first two 

quarters of 2019/20. 
 

 Homeless 
Households 

2018/19 301 

2019/20 to date 182 

2019/20 projected total 369 

 
Page 12



The projected figures are based on an average increase of 29% over the first two 
quarters. 
 
The increases in homelessness are to do with the continued unaffordability of the 
private rented sector for single people of all ages but especially under 35’s. There is 
also a significant lack of one bed general need accommodation in the social housing 
sector in the Borough. Between October 2018 and October 19 we were only able to 
meet 7% of our general one bed need. This equates to just 49 households. To 
provide context over the same period we had a statutory s.75 duty to 31 single 
people. This left just 18 properties to satisfy our s.73 duties where 261 single people 
were owed this duty.  
 
We are working at pace with our partner RSL’s to increase the supply of one bed 
properties but this will take time. We also need to ensure new developments provide 
mixed communities. 
 

 

8.0 WHAT WE NEED TO DO NEXT  
 
8.1 To assist with the ever-increasing caseloads of the housing solutions team we are in 

the process of purchasing a new homelessness casework module for our Civica 
Housing System. This will not only provide an efficiency in regards to the time it is 
taking to complete electronic case work but will establish a better way of working 
collaboratively with applicants in undertaking all necessary reasonable steps to 
prevent and relieve homelessness. This new system will also provide a further 
improvement on our data collection to assist with work around understanding the 
reasons for homelessness to enable a more targeted prevention approach. 
 

8.2 We are looking to redraft our housing options wizard currently embedded on Living 
Merthyr Tydfil. This system provides applicants with advice specific to their needs 
based on answers they provide to standardised questions. By redrafting the advice 
to provide more detail and signposting it will ensure that households and support 
agencies have access to robust housing advice as early as possible to try and 
prevent their homelessness. The aim being to reduce the number of crisis 
presentations where often it is not possible to relieve or prevent their homelessness 
 

8.3 We are continuing to work with our partner RSLs to build new housing at pace. The 
focus of this will be on one-bed general need units. Modern methods of construction 
are also being considered to increase the pace that these are delivered.  
 

8.4 We are going to start work with employability and training services to provide the 
skills and support needed for our applicant to enter the employment market. It is 
hoped that this will not only provide independence for our applicants but go some 
way to mitigating the continuing impact of welfare reform. Initially this work will be 
targeted at prison leavers who often start this work while in custody to prevent 
recidivism and reduce homelessness.  

 

9.0 CONTRIBUTION TO WELLBEING OBJECTIVES 

9.1 Best Start to Life – there is significant evidence to show the devastating effects that 
homelessness can have on families with children. Being placed in temporary 

Page 13



accommodation, for even the briefest of periods can be very upsetting and even 
neurologically damaging for children. The stress and anxiety caused within 
households facing homelessness inevitably leads to the prevalence of more Adverse 
Childhood Experiences (ACEs) for children caught up in the situation. Many of the 
projects and services outlined in this report aim to prevent homelessness, providing 
support to families and single people in crisis and to quickly find new accommodation 
for those who find themselves homeless.  

 
9.2 Working Life – it is very difficult if not impossible to sustain employment if an 

individual becomes homeless. Furthermore, it is very difficult to focus upon finding 
employment, when an individual’s basic human needs – shelter, are not satisfied. 
Therefore, homelessness services are crucial to enabling people to find and sustain 
employment. 

 
9.3  Living Well – chronic rough sleepers and those ‘marginally/tentatively housed’ are 

often (but not always) substance users and most, if not all, have three or more 
Adverse Childhood Experiences. This often leads them into crime to fund their habit, 
typically manifesting itself in petty crime such as shop lifting, but also more serious 
crime such as public order offences, violence and assaults. This behaviour inevitably 
has a negative impact on a communities’ perception of safety. Homelessness can 
have catastrophic effects on a person’s physical and mental wellbeing. Numerous 
studies have shown that the prevalence of disease and mortality in rough sleepers 
for instance is far higher than the general population. At the less acute stages of 
homelessness – cases where persons are going without food to pay rent or other 
costs (often debts) are sadly increasing with an inevitable detrimental effect on the 
person’s physical and mental health. The Homelessness Strategy will continue to 
focus upon enabling people to find suitable and affordable accommodation that 
meets their needs and aspirations to live well and to live independently. 

 
 
 
 
ALYN OWEN 
CHIEF OFFICER – COMMUNITY 
REGENERATION 

COUNCILLOR GERAINT THOMAS 
PORTFOLIO MEMBER - REGENERATION 

& PUBLIC PROTECTION  
 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

List the Background 
documents which have 
been relied on in 
preparing the report. 
E.g. previous minutes of 
relevant committees 

 
 

NONE N/A 

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

 

 
 Page 14



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 

 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE REPORT 

 

 

 

 

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 

Corporate Self-Evaluation – Question 2 (Provision & 
Service Delivery) 
 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 Self-evaluation is a rigorous process that enables Chief Officers, Heads of Service 

and officers to be critically reflective about outcomes, service provision and 
leadership and management. 
 

1.2 Following a refocus exercise of documentation to ensure it continued to meet the 
organisation’s needs; the Council’s Corporate Management Team (CMT) approved 
the re-introduction of the corporate self-evaluation process in June 2019.    
 

1.3 The process is structured into ‘bite-sized’ chunks on a question-by-question basis.  
This aims to support all officers involved to contribute to the process whilst 
maintaining their ability to manage their other multiple priorities. 

 
1.4 This report focuses on the completion of the self-evaluation undertaken by the Chief 

Officer: Community Regeneration and his teams in relation to Key Question 2 
(Provision & Service Delivery).  The response directly relates to the Working Life 
theme laid down in the Council’s Corporate Plan: Focus on the Future. 

 

1.5 This report and its appendices highlight the key findings of the self-evaluation 
activity; outline areas of good practice along with areas for development; and 
identifies the priorities for improvement that will be developed into a Business 
Improvement Plan. 

 

Date Written 18th December 2019 

Report Author Alyn Owen/Performance Team 

Service Area Community Regeneration, Public 
Protection and Housing 

Committee Date 14th January 2020 

Page 15

Agenda Item 4



2.0 RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 
2.1 Committee Members are requested to review the documentation and key findings 

following completion of Key Question 2 of the process. 

2.2 Committee Members to review and scrutinise the evaluative judgements provided by 
officers within the report identified through completion of the self-evaluation process. 

 
 
 

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 Self-evaluation is a business process that is rigorous and enables organisations to be 

critically reflective about outcomes, service provision and leadership and 
management.  In 2013/14, the Council introduced a self-evaluation process that was 
completed by officers at Head of Service level.  The format of the challenge sessions 
was based on high-level challenge in a session lasting 2-2½ hours; with a number of 
Heads of Service. 

 
3.2 Over time, using lessons learned over previous years, the format of the challenge of 

self-evaluation was developed (e.g.) self-evaluation was undertaken on a service-level 
basis; with challenge being offered a Performance Board consisting the Chief 
Executive, Directorate Lead; Portfolio Member and the Chair of the Scrutiny 
Committee to which the service reported.  The key outcome of the process was to 
identify areas of good practice; along with priorities for improvement. 

 
3.3 In 2019, a refocus exercise was undertaken to ensure the self-evaluation documents 

continued to meet the organisation’s needs (e.g.) offered officers completing the 
forms opportunity to outline the current service position; highlight any good practice; 
note areas for development and to identify the services’ priorities for improvement. 
The documents were organised in the form of 3 key questions: 
 

 Outcomes; 

 Provision and Service Delivery; and  

 Leadership and management. 
 

There is no specific order in which the questions should be completed as long as all 
three questions are completed within the year. 
 

3.4 Following consideration of the updated documents by the Council’s Corporate 
Management Team (CMT); the new format was approved for re-introduction in June 
2019.  

 
3.5 As part of the process cycle supporting the delivery of the self-evaluation process 

(see Appendix 1), it was confirmed each completed question should be presented 
before the sector-specific scrutiny committee that normally scrutinises the 
outputs/outcomes for the relevant service area.  This was seen as an opportunity for 
Committee Members to review and explore facets of the wide range of activities for 
which Chief Officers were accountable whilst for services, it was seen as an 
opportunity for details of their services to be brought before scrutiny to outline 
positive practice and achievements along with any challenges faced and areas for 
development. 

Page 16



3.6 Committee Members are asked to review the content of the completed questions and 
consider performance, areas of good practice, areas for development and, perhaps 
most importantly, the services’ priorities for improvement for the coming year.  
Scrutineers are also required to assess whether the judgement reached through 
completion of the process is appropriate. 

 

4 WHERE WE WERE  
 
4.1  In previous years, the Council had undertaken self-evaluation activities annually on a 

service-by service basis.  The process required Heads of Service to review 
project/programme activity and reflect on what had been achieved, as well as 
identifying what needed to be prioritised next with a view to planning how should be 
done.  

 

5 WHERE WE ARE NOW  
 
5.1  Following approval of the refocused self-evaluation (both process and paperwork); 

discussions took place with each of the 4 Chief Officers who confirmed that a copy of 
the paperwork should be issued to their teams so they might consider how they 
wished to contribute to preparing a response.   
 

5.2 This specific report links to the response for the service areas for which the Chief 
Officer – Community Regeneration is accountable.  It also relates to the Working 
Life theme contained within MTCBC’s Corporate Wellbeing Plan (Focus on the 
Future: wellbeing in our community).  The Chief Officer requested that, with support 
from the Performance & Scrutiny Team, a workshop be arranged to enable all 
relevant officers to have input to the production of the response document.   

 
5.3 In order to maximise the time allocated for the workshop, service managers were 

asked to work with their teams to prepare a service-specific response.  This would 
then be submitted to the Performance & Scrutiny Officer who would produce one 
collated document for the Chief Officer and all attendees.  The Performance Officer 
would also undertake some basic analysis of the key findings to support discussions 
and internal challenge at the workshop event. 
 

5.4 The workshop session took place on Wednesday 4th December 2019.  Led by the 
Chief Officer and supported by the Performance & Scrutiny Officer; the session was 
well attended by officers from across the Community Regeneration, Public Protection 
and Housing teams.  Discussion and challenge took place around the first draft 
responses submitted and this led to the identification of additional priorities for 
improvement.   
 

5.5    The key findings of the workshop session were identified as listed below: 
 

 Officers completing the process reflected on how they worked with the Council 
corporate support services and evaluated the effectiveness of these working 
relationships; the collated results are listed in the table below: 

 
- Human Resources – Mixed 
- Corporate Communications – Good 
- Finance & Accountancy – Good 
- Legal Services – Good 

Page 17



- Procurement – Good 
- Business Change – Limited Contact 
- Performance & Scrutiny – Good 
- IT Services – Good 
- Democratic Services – Limited Contact 
- Business Support Services – Limited Contact 
- Contact Centre – Mixed/Poor 

 
5.6 In relation to section 2.1 of the self-evaluation; when reaching the holistic judgements 

allocated; a number of impacting factors were identified in the final judgement, these 
included: 

 
- The Community Regeneration team sourced some external funding that means 

they are able to ‘buy in’ a proportion of a Corporate Communications Officer’s 
time.  This means that there is bespoke support available four days per week that 
can focus solely on promoting the work of the programmes; projects and activities 
delivered by the team. 

- There was a lack of clarity noted around the role of some of the corporate support 
teams in relation to what support their role was (e.g.) the Business Change Team. 

- Where limited contact with support services was noted; it was also highlighted that 
where contact did take place, the quality of support was good;  

- Some issues about the capacity of support teams to offer support required was 
noted by respondents (e.g.) the support received from the Performance and 
Scrutiny team was found to be good; however, due to reduced capacity within that 
team this support was primarily focused on meeting corporate requirements rather 
than ‘business as usual’. 

5.7 In relation to section 2.2 of the self-evaluation, there was strong evidence of service 
areas having a clear understanding of the value of collaborative and partnership 
working.  Evidence was available to support contributions to corporate and 
partnership strategic plans; as well as clear evidence of cross-departmental work 
across the Council.  There is also strong evidence of wider partnership and 
collaboration working on a local; regional and national levels. 

5.8 In relation to Section 2.3 of the self-evaluation, there was strong evidence of 
improvement in how the five ways of working was becoming more commonly used 
across all service areas with an holistic self-assessed judgement of Good being 
reached. 

 

5.9 Following completion of the three sub-questions, the collated findings led to the group 
reaching an whole question judgment of Good.   

 
5.10 The findings of Key Question 2 were presented with Members of the Community  

Regeneration, Public Protection & Housing (CRPPH) Board at the meeting held on 
Monday 16th December 2019.  The document and its findings were, reviewed, 
discussed and challenged.  Some suggested amendments were identified through 
completion of this process and these have been actioned and are incorporated into 
the version of the collated document presented to Scrutiny Committee Members 
(Appendix 2). 

 
 

Page 18



6 WHERE WE WANT TO BE  
 
6.1 Through completion of this process; the Chief Officer: Community Regeneration and 

his teams have identified a number of areas for development upon which they should 
focus.  By discussing and exploring these, and considering any other requirements 
such as proposals/recommendations for improvement from auditors and regulators, 
the key priorities for improvement were identified. 
 

6.2 In order to provide a framework for the response to the identified priorities for 
improvement; a series of Business Improvement Plans (BIPs) are to be developed 
with the support of the Council’s Performance and Scrutiny Team.  These BIPs will 
again be collaboratively developed by the Working Life working group; the main aim 
of this will be: 
 

 To clearly identify the actions to be undertaken to positively progress the 
priorities for improvement, giving a clear indication of the desired outcomes 
(i.e.) what the improvement would look like; 

 To identify who is accountable for the delivering the actions and provide clarity 
on what the required timescales would be; 

 To provide a tool for regular monitoring of the progress made; and the 
effectiveness of the actions identified to improve; and 

 To have a standardised corporate way in which improvement activities can be 
organised, developing supporting governance arrangements. 

 
6.3 The findings of the self-evaluation activities will also support clearer identification of 

opportunities to develop more collaborative/integrated working processes across the 
organisation and more widely with external partners/stakeholders. 

 

7 WHAT WE NEED TO DO NEXT  
 
7.1   Secure the views and feedback of Scrutiny Committee Members the completion of  

the self-evaluation process; as well as discussion around the self-assessed 
judgements. 

 

7.2 Continue to populate the Business Improvement Plans; and schedule a working     
group meeting to look at developing the actions required to progress these providing 
clarity around accountability for completion; timescales  etc. 
 

7.3   Continue to explore the five ways of working in more detail to develop a deeper  
understanding of these before moving on to consider Key Question 3 which focuses 
on Leadership and Management.  

 

7.4   Look at how we ensure we build the proposed ‘areas for development’ highlighted by  
WAO into the developing BIPs (where appropriate) so that progress of these 
proposals can be monitored and evidence of action recorded as required. 

 

8.0 CONTRIBUTION TO WELLBEING OBJECTIVES 

8.1 The corporate self-evaluation process is based around the services/activities delivered 
and should reflect the contribution made in relation to the four wellbeing objectives set 
down by the Council in focus in the Corporate Wellbeing Plan.   

 Page 19



8.2 This report specifically links to the Working Life objective within the Council’s  
Corporate Wellbeing Plan: People feel supported to develop the skills required 
to meet the needs of businesses; with a developing, safe infrastructure making 
Merthyr Tydfil an attractive destination.   
 

8.3   Through completion of the self-evaluation process; we are also be able to 
demonstrate our team’s contribution to support progress against the following 
objectives: 
 

 Children and young people get the best start to life and are equipped with the 
skills they need to be successful learners and confident individuals 

 People are empowered to live independently within their communities, where 
they are safe and enjoy good physical and mental health 

 

 

 

 
ALYN OWEN 
CHIEF OFFICER: COMMUNITY 
REGENERATION 

COUNCILLOR GERAINT THOMAS 
CABINET MEMBER: REGENERATION & 

PUBLIC PROTECTION 
 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

 
 

  

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Page 20



Self-Evaluation Process Cycle: 4 months x 3 
 
 
    Internal challenge      External challenge 
 
 
 
 
 

                  
          

Evidence 
gathering & 
judgment

Internal 
challenge

on judgment

Internal 
challenge at 

CMT

External 
challenge

Scrutiny

Evidence 
gathering & 
judgment

Internal 
challenge

on judgment

Internal 
challenge at 

CMT

External 
challenge

Scrutiny

Evidence 
gathering & 

judgment

Internal 
challenge

on judgment

Internal 
challenge at 

CMT

External 
challenge

Scrutiny

SER Question # 
Evidence and 
judgment 

 ESLT              

 CRPPH             According to 

 SMB                CO structure 

 SLT 

 TBC 

Scrutiny 

SER  

Question # 
SER  

Question # 

SER  

Question # 

On completion of the 3 key questions; thematic Performance 
Board sessions would be scheduled in Months 12-13 - here there 

would be challenge on the overall position statement 

Months  
1-2  

Month 3 

Month 4 

Months  
5-6  

Months  
9-10  

Month 7 Month 11 

Month 8 Month 12 

Appendix 1 

P
age 21



Performance Board 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Analysis of commonalities     Report to CMT to identify support needed to drive 
improvement 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BEST START 
 
Overall Position 
Statement 
 
Business Improvement 
Plans 

Priorities for Improvement  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Business Improvement 
Plans 

WORKING LIFE 
 
Overall Position 
Statement 
 
Business Improvement 
Plans 

Priorities for Improvement  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Business Improvement 
Plans 

ENVIRONMENTAL 
WELLBEING 

Overall Position Statement 
 
Business Improvement 
Plans 

LIVING WELL 
 
Overall Position 
Statement 
 
Business Improvement 
Plans 

Priorities for Improvement  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Business Improvement 
Plans 

Priorities for 
Improvement  
 
 
 
 
 
Business Improvement 
Plans 

 

SUMMONING 

CIRCLE 

Best Start 

Working Life 

Environmental Wellbeing 

Living Well 

Finance & 
Accounting 

HR & Legal 

ICT 

Corporate Communications 

Page 22



Page 1 of 40 
 

CORPORATE SELF-EVALUATION PROCESS:  Question 2 

Precis Document - Provision & Service Delivery 

2.1 Partnership with Corporate Support Services 

Responding service areas were required to evaluate the effectiveness of the support received from internal corporate support 

services.  By analysing the individual judgements, an holistic judgment can be derived in relation to support received from these 

services.  These individual judgements are below: 

 Human Resources – Mixed  Performance & Change – Good 

 Corporate Communications – Good  IT Services – Good 

 Finance and Accountancy – Good  Democratic Services – Limited Contact 

 Legal – Good  Business Support Services – Limited Contact 

 Procurement – Good  Contact Centre – Poor/Mixed 

 Business Change – Limited Contact  

Some factors that impacted these judgements have been listed below to provide some context: 

 In relation to the Corporate Communications judgement, it should be noted that the Community Regeneration team sourced 

some external funding which meant they were able to collectively ‘buy-in’ a percentage of Corporate Communications 

officer time (equating to 4 days per week).  This has led to dedicated support being received; with officer support accessed 

where the sole focus has been promoting the Teams’ work/services. 

 Where limited contact is noted; it should be pointed out that when this contact has occurred; it has generally been of good 

quality. 

 Through discussion around the role and remit of corporate support services; there was a lack of clarity around what some 

corporate support services actually deliver (e.g.) Business Change team. 

 Some issues around the capacity of support teams to offer support was noted by respondents (e.g.) the support received 

from the Performance and Scrutiny Team has been deemed good and of value.  However, it was identified that for this 

support service, capacity to offer support on an ad-hoc basis was limited due to a loss of staff and this led to contact focusing 

on the requirement to meet corporate needs rather than providing more holistic support to meet service area’s needs 

around business as usual. 

2.2 Opportunities for Collaboration & Partnership 

Responding Service Areas were required to outline how they understood and took advantage of opportunities for collaboration 

and partnership working.  The following key findings were identified: 

 There was strong evidence of service areas contributing to existing partnership plans; and of contributions made to 

achieving joint outcomes, including: 
 

 Focus on the Future: wellbeing in our community   Tackling Poverty 

 Destination Management Plan   Air Quality Action Plan 

 Local Development Plan   Toilet Strategy 

 Town Centre Action Plan   Active Merthyr Plan 

 Economic Growth Strategy   Social Enterprise Strategy 

 Cwm Taf Substance Misuse Plan   Tobacco Control Delivery Plan 

 Welsh Heads of Trading Standards Strategic Assessment   LNE Framework 
 

 The service areas responding provided clear evidence of partnership working with other services areas across the Council; 

including: Social Services; Education; Licensing; Planning; Highways and Engineering; Parks Department; Parking Section; 

Waste and Recycling Services.  This list is not exhaustive. 

 There is strong evidence of wider partnership and collaborative working across the County Borough with other public sector 

partners; as well as private and third sector organisations.  A wide cross section of organisations is in place; these include: 

 Department for Work and 

Pensions 

 Careers Wales  Salvation Army 

 Rent Smart Wales  UK Border Force  Citizen’s Advice Bureau 

Appendix 2 

Page 23



Page 2 of 40 
 

 Valleys Task Force  Alzheimer’s Society  Platfform 

 Food Standards Agency  South Wales Police  Canolfan Soar 

 Business Wales  Other local authorities  Llamau 

 The College, Merthyr Tydfil  Tydfil Training Consortium  Adref 

 BikePark Wales  British Gas  Penydarren Boys & Girls Club 

 Town Centre Partnership   Taf Bargoed Regeneration 

Partnership 

 BAWSO 

 Merthyr Valley Homes  Merthyr Tydfil Housing 

Association 

 Merthyr Tydfil Leisure Trust 

 Cwm Taf Morgannwg UHB  The Roost, Troedyrhiw  Ffos y Fran 

 Probation Services  Welsh Heads of Trading 

Standards (WHoTS) 

 Bevan Foundation 

 Community Occupational 

Health Team 

 Merthyr Tydfil Enterprise 

Centre (MTEC) 

 Merthyr and the Valleys MIND 

 Welsh Food Microbiological 

Forum 

 Welsh Food Law Enforcement  

Liaison Committee 

 There is strong evidence of regional collaboration: demonstrating partnership and collaborative activities with 

CADW; Wales Illegal Money Lending Unit; Design /Council for Wales; Job Centre Plus; South East Wales 

Competitiveness Network; Public Health Wales; Merthyr Tydfil Social Enterprise Network; Sports Wales; National 

Lottery Heritage Fund.  This list is not exhaustive. 
 

2.3 The Sustainable Development Principle (the five ways of working) 

To demonstrate how the service understand and use sustainable development (the five ways of working); service 

areas had to assign themselves a score  against the five ways of working based on a scale produced by the Future 

Generations Commissioner.  The scores assigned were as follows: 

 

Em
p

lo
ya

b
ili

ty
 

B
u

si
n

e
ss

 
Su

p
p

o
rt

 &
 

In
w

ar
d

 
In

ve
st

m
e

n
t 

En
vi

ro
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
H

e
al

th
 

Ex
te

rn
al

 a
n

d
 

Eu
ro

p
e

an
 

Fu
n

d
in

g 

St
ra

te
gi

c 

R
e

ge
n

er
at

io
n

 

P
A

SS
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s 

Su
p

p
o

rt
in

g 

P
e

o
p

le
 &

 
H

o
u

si
n

g 

H
e

ri
ta

ge
, 

C
u

lt
u

re
 &

 

Sp
o

rt
s 

D
e

ve
lo

p
m

e
n

t 

R
ig

h
ts

 o
f 

W
ay

 

 

W
FG

 s
co

re
 

(r
o

u
n

d
e

d
 o

ff
) 

 

Long-term 1 0.5 1.5 1 1 1.5 1 1.5 1 
 

1.5 

Prevention 1.5 0.5 1.5 1 1 1.5 1 1 1 
 

1.5 

Integrated 1.5 0.5 1.5 1 1 1.5 1 1 1 
 

1.5 

Collaboration 2 1 1 1 1.5 1.5 1 1 1 
 

1.5 

Involvement 1 1 1.5 1 1 1.5 1 1 1 
 

1.5 

 

We can use the following table to place a judgement assessment against these scores: 

Score Judgement 

0 - 0.5 UNSATISFACTORY and needs urgent improvement 

1 ADEQUATE 

1.5 GOOD 

2 EXCELLENT 

 

 

Page 24



Page 3 of 40 
 

 

 

 

 

                                                         

Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council 

Self-Evaluation Report  

Question 2: Provision and Service Delivery 

Community Regeneration, Public Protection & 

Housing 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Governance (for Performance & Scrutiny use only) 

        Date: 

Form completed and received:          14/11/2019                        

Internal challenge – session:          04/12/2019                        

External Challenge session:                                     16/12/2019 

Reviewed at Scrutiny:                                               14/01/2020 

Page 25



Page 4 of 40 
 

QUESTION 2:  PROVISION & SERVICE DELIVERY 

 

     

Question 2.1:  How well does the service engage with corporate support services to help improve service  

                           provision and delivery? 

 

 

 

       Good 

     

EVALUATION: When answering the question, consider the following: 

 

 The quality and frequency of contact with support services; 

 Whether the support received enabled the service to improve provision and delivery 

 

 

 

 

Human Resources (HR) 
Employability  Day to day support and advice has been sought from HR which focus on staff issues, recruitment, 

workforce development, advice on policy and support with HR21/TA21 

 Workforce development has been a key focus of interaction with HR.  Over the last 12 months, we 

have collaboratively worked with HR on the development of the Workforce Development theme within 

the PSB Cwm Taf ‘Well-Being Plan’ – Strong Economy.  The focus of developing an employability pledge 

has led to the local authority designing a Work Experience Policy, which has been well received by 

departments and widely accessed by employability services within the local authority i.e. Communities 

for Work and Communities for Work Plus.  This work will continue in line with pledge to ensure that fit 

for purpose initiative are taken forward.  All information is fed back to PSB and SPB. 

 Collaborative work is underway with Social Services on the development of a ‘Pathway to Work’ for 

Care Leavers.  HR have been involved in the development of the plan in a hope that future work 

experience opportunities can be aligned to services users.  This strengthens our Corporate Parenting 

role in terms of the support we offer. 

 The timeliness of some of the responses required from HR has been an issue; as has the issue of 

conflicting advice received from the department in the past. 

 We consider the support received from this corporate support service to be Mixed. 

Business Support & 

Inward Investment  

 The team has worked with the HR over the past 6 months to deal with staffing issues regarding an 

issue with a member of staff being on long-term sickness leave.  HR was supportive with issues with 

the Cohort System and regular meetings were held to keep us informed.  However some issues were 

left to the team manager to deal with which proved difficult at times without the necessary training 

and support. 

 HR’s role with dealing with HR21 is always quick and efficient. 

 HR’s role in support with covering staff for long term sickness with agency staff was effective. 

 We consider the support received from this corporate support service to be Mixed. 

Environmental Health 
 As a frontline service we have involvement with HR in a number of areas. HR provide much needed 

administrative support in the recruitment of new staff, changes to contracts and job evaluation which 

has always been helpful and forthcoming.  

 Less helpful has been the recent VER and redundancy process which missed the need for 

communication with line mangers of staff seeking to leave as part of the process.   

 HR’s role in dealing with difficult individual staffing issues which may result in disciplinary action or 

dismissal is not always clear. Over the years there has been a tendency for more and more traditional 

HR activities to be delegated to service managers to tack on to the day job without the necessary 

training and support.  

 Sometimes there is a reluctance to embrace innovation and flexibility in order to assist us delivering 

front line services in an environment where resources have been severely cut. 

 We consider the support received from this corporate support service to be Mixed. 

External Funding Team  The collective department are always on hand to advise regarding employment / recruitment 

opportunities. They respond proactively and within quick timescales in terms of day-to-day questions 

JUDGEMENT

: 

Current Position: 

Page 26



Page 5 of 40 
 

relating to sickness, HR21 / TA21 issues and general employment law / procedures, which in turn 

enables managers to act quickly and decisively. 

 We consider the support received from this corporate support service to be Good. 

Strategic Regeneration  The Strategic Regeneration Team would only require the support of HR when recruiting.  The team 

issues the advert and provides the paperwork and any guidance required – the rest is undertaken 

directly by the Regeneration Team.  Recruitment is not a regular occurrence and is not a requirement 

to support service delivery. 

 We consider the support received from this corporate support service to be Mixed. 

PASS Services  The Community Safety Team Leader and the Head of PASS have engaged with HR on a number of areas 

over the last 12 months in relation to the following 

- On policies and procedures relating to staff breaks. Regular meetings were set over a number of 

months to explore if CCTV department were entitled to breaks. Previous HR stance had been they 

were exempt however there is still lack of clarity. Provision and delivery is still occasion affected by 

breaks. 

- Support over staff matters in regards to discipline and behaviour has been sought frequently since 

April. Most common behaviour has been failure to follow instruction on a number of matters such 

as leaving the control room. 

 HR currently provides advice regarding staffing matters to Trading Standards, to improve service 

delivery and efficiency it would be beneficial that a more hands on approach is adopted enabling TS 

officers to concentrate on work related matters rather than HR matters.  The only contact Licensing has 

had with HR has been in respect of the Focus on Performance procedure.  The Officer was extremely 

helpful and provided much needed advice.   

 Across the PASS services; the support received from this corporate support service is considered to be 

Mixed. 

Housing & Supporting 

People 

 There have been several staffing issues within Housing over the past 18 months, which have led the 

team leader and departmental manager having to seek advice from the Human Resource service.  HR 

staff have helped negotiate resolution to some of the problems encountered and have supported the 

Housing Manager.  All of the advice has been readily available when called upon.  Due to work 

pressures, it would be helpful with some staffing matters if HR could pick up or have stronger remit on 

formalities and progressing matters as when it falls to line managers this is sometimes difficult given 

the lack of expertise dealing with specific and often difficult and complex issues.  

 In terms of contracts, DBS checks – these are understandably time consuming but delays often hinder 

projects or commencement of posts, some processes are admin heavy when we could more 

electronically to save time and resources to work more efficiently  

 We consider the support received from this corporate support service to be Mixed.  

Leisure, Culture & Sports 

Development 

 We have had limited opportunity to work directly with HR during the past 12 months.  However the one 

project around staff wellbeing (Wellbeing Wednesday’s) failed to move forward due to a lack of 

capacity in HR. 

 We consider the support received from this corporate support service to be Mixed. 

Rights of Way  We have contact with HR with the general issues such as HR21 queries etc,; these are dealt with quite 

quickly.  There has been delays sometimes in getting contract letters to staff and HR have had to be 

reminded and chased on this. There has also been some discrepancies in details on Job adverts 

therefore there needs to be more attention to detail paid. 

 We consider the support received from this corporate support service to be Mixed.   
 

The holistic judgment in relation to support received from Human Resources is Mixed. 
 

Corporate Communications 
Employability  Employability is currently financially contributing to some time to be directly supported to promote 

Employability Services.   

 We have been able to develop project specific Facebook pages dedicated to each support strand. 

 Regular opportunities have been shared via social media to promote community outreach venues and 

activities 

 We have showcased the Employability Team   creating the opportunity to explain more about the roles 

with the team and the type of support we offer 

 We have been keen to develop case studies where successes have been had with participants.  A new 

approach has been taken with the use of video footage.  To date this has been well received. 

 We feature in the PR planner that Corporate Communications oversee.  This is a rolling planner, which 

prompts us and allows us to plan major developments that need to be promoted. 

 We generally find the team very accommodating and very adaptive to our demands. 

 We consider the support received from this corporate support service to be Good. 

Page 27



Page 6 of 40 
 

Business Support & 

Inward Investment 

 We have strong links to corporate communications team throughout several of our fields of work.  Over 

the past few months we have collaborated with corporate communications to raise awareness of the 

Business Wales Brexit Portal to provide businesses with more information on how to prepare for Brexit.  

We have also engaged with the team to promote Meet the Buyer Events, encouraging uptake of our 

loan products and promoting our Meanwhile launches.  We appreciate that we have a high level of 

support from this service as we have a dedicated resource. 

 We consider the support received from this corporate support service to be Good. 

Environmental Health  We have a good relationship with the current the Corporate Communications team.  We have worked 

well together to engage stakeholder consultation, most recently with the consultation on the 

Twynyrodyn Air Quality Action Plan and the Councils toilet strategy. They have also assisted with some 

recent data gathering on consumer perceptions of the Food Hygiene Rating Scheme. Accessibility to the 

team can sometimes be a problem particularly where there are time sensitive messages we need to 

disseminate. 

 We consider the support received from this corporate support service to be Mixed. 

External Funding Team  The team benefit from the fact that we have a member of the Corporate Communications Team sat 

within our offices four days a week. Considering this, we are able to drive project success stories 

through a variety of marketing mechanisms. In addition, we have an excellent relationship with the new 

Social Media Officer too who advices our Destination Management Team concerning matters of social 

media as well as the development of short, tourism video’s also. The overall team are an excellent 

‘sounding board’ for project / marketing / advertising ideas too 

 It must be noted that the Community Regeneration Department finance a dedicated Corporate 

Communications Officer for four days, and therefore, the impact of having this person within our office 

ensures that we maximise the benefit. With this in mind, if we didn’t have this officers here the analysis 

would be limited or mixed. 

 We consider the support received from this corporate support service to be Good. 

Strategic Regeneration  Working with the Corporate Communications Team is a key requirement to support our service 

delivery.  The Team provides support to promote developments and initiatives that the team are 

working on from a physical regeneration perspective and also for Town Centre events.  Corporate 

Communications have recently been heavily involved in helping deliver the Communications Strategy 

for the Cyfarthfa Plan which has been crucial in the organisation of community consultations not only 

from a promotional side but ensuring that the appointed consultants understand and meet the 

authority’s Welsh Language requirements. 

 We consider the support received from this corporate support service to be Good. 

PASS Services  Community Safety contact with the Corporate Communications team has been predominantly for 

community cohesion campaigns and activities.  Officers have experienced a slower than expected 

response and missed key dates such as hate crime awareness week 

 The Trading Standards service utilises Corporate Communication in order to publicise the work which 

has been achieved. This maybe through press releases or social media posts regarding criminal frauds. 

In most cases the publicity has been timely.   

 Across the PASS services; the support received from this corporate support service is considered to be 

Good. 

Housing & Supporting 

People 

 As part of the work around the homelessness strategy we worked closely with Corporate 

Communications to promote the consultation work we were undertaking. This resulted in robust 

evidence on public opinion of homelessness within the County Borough and feedback on the resulting 

strategy document. Corporate Communications were a vital partner in the raising awareness of a new 

housing application process which enabled as many residents as possible re-registering on the new 

housing register with minimal impact on the continuing allocation and letting of properties with our 

partner Registered Social Landlords.  Luckily, we were able to access support from Jackie Hyubs (a 

Corporate Communications Officer whose post is funded by the Community Regeneration team) who 

publicised much of the work around Night Shelter and homelessness that helped us recruit new 

volunteers, inform and educate people about the services on offer. 

 There is a need for the use of Social Media to be delegated to teams rather than having to submit a post 

for approval by which point the issue has passed. For housing; this is invaluable as the ability to tweet or 

post ourselves means we can instantly celebrate the good work (e.g.) we have had a donation to the 

night shelter an instant tweet would be more appropriate than a wait for an approved tweet.  

 Any press releases have to be drafted by the appropriate officer and then sent through to Corporate 

Communications - this can result in a reluctance to use the service if the processes are too time 

consuming. Having to get articles translated into Welsh before advertising can also lead to delays which 

can sometimes result in deadlines not being met and events pass.    

Page 28



Page 7 of 40 
 

 As part of our Older Persons Strategy, the Supporting People &Older People’s Co-ordinator regularly 

sends information to Corporate Communications on local events for older people for advertising on 

MTCBC’s social media, to promote attendance in order to help reduce the loneliness and isolation.  

 We consider the support received from this corporate support service to be Mixed.   
Leisure, Culture & Sports 

Development 

 We have had a high level of contact with the Corporate Communications team.  We have worked on 

around 5 films of evidence of impact projects, a series of filmed adverts for physical activity 

opportunities in the County Borough and a range Facebook marketing campaigns.   

 In addition to the day today activity, the Corporate Communication team supported the recent Sport 

and Physical Activity Strategy consultation both by providing online consultation and contributing to the 

stakeholder event. 

 We consider the support received from this corporate support service to be Good. 

Rights of Way  We have worked closely with Corporate Communications when we have consultation events that need 

to be publicised; working on press releases at short notices (e.g.) row closures etc.  The team also work 

closely with us when we have the Stride and Ride event and Trevithick celebrations; this has only been 

possible since we had a dedicated officer in post, before this occurred there was a very slow 

turnaround on getting messages out. 

 Concerns on this would be that if funding wasn’t found we would return to struggling with publicity  

 We consider the support received from this corporate support service to be Mixed.   
 

The holistic judgment in relation to support received from Corporate Communications is Good 
 

Finance & Accountancy 
Employability  We have key links with accountants.  They support us in all aspects of financial record keeping and 

claims processes.  Claims processes are varied for each grant. 

 We utilise the Accountancy team for financial forecasting when developing project ideas and when 

project re profiles are required.  They offer firm advice on whether options are viable often providing 

various options for consideration. 

 They understand the intricacies of each of our funders, which acts as a second opinion on taking things 

forward and making decisions. 

 Accountancy offer support at ties of audit with Welsh Government, EFAT and internal audit. Our 

approach together ensures a robust approach to record keeping that is effective in responding. 

 We consider the support received from this corporate support service to be Good. 

Business Support & 

Inward Investment 

 Our team is supported by the finance department to submit claims to Welsh Government for our grant 

and loan programmes.   

 Finance and Accountancy also form part of the Orbit Management Team which demonstrates 

integration as we are bringing together different teams, including estates, to work towards common 

goals which will future proof the Orbit Business Centre. 

 We consider the support received from this corporate support service to be Good. 

Environmental Health  The Environmental Health Manager has monthly meeting with the departmental accountant. This is a 

helpful way of working as both parties develop a mutual understanding about service delivery. Potential 

budget problems are identified at the earliest possible time to allow corrective action to be taken or the 

issue to be flagged to a more senior level.  

 The Finance and Accountancy team is always accessible and helpful particularly when it comes to 

forward projections to take account of staffing changes, our single biggest expenditure item.  

 However, I do find accountancy a little over enthusiastic in reducing the budget lines throughout the 

year which does have implications on available spend. The WOA pointed out that we are successively 

underspent and this month on month budget reduction plays a part in this. It also means when saving 

are required they have already been taken. 

 We consider the support received from this corporate support service to be Good. 

External Funding Team  The team’s main accountant (Karen Rees) continues to be a real asset for the department and can be 

called upon for all matters of finance, match funding, project development and financial profiling. 

Turnaround from requests to answers is extremely fast considering the extensive workload that she 

must have within her own directorate. 

 With this in mind, we consider the support given by this corporate support service to be Good. 

Strategic Regeneration  Working with the Finance and Accountancy is imperative for Strategic Regeneration.  The Capital 

Programme budget is managed from within this team and liaison with Accountancy to manage this 

budget is essential.  Also, a number of Regeneration Programmes are delivered through the team and 

support is given for budget management where required and always for the preparation of financial 

claims.  The revenue budget for the Town Centre is also managed between Regeneration and 

Accountancy.  Working closely with this team is essential to service delivery.  There is a risk to service 

Page 29



Page 8 of 40 
 

delivery if the collaboration between both teams was to lessen and also from an Accountancy 

perspective as both teams are inter-dependent. 

 We consider the support received from this corporate support service to be Good. 

PASS Services  Community safety frequently working with finance and accountancy in dealing with multiple grants and 

funding streams. They are easily accessible, very supportive and provide and excellent service. 

 Trading Standards has not had any need to seek support from Finance & Accountancy team. 

 The Licensing Team’s budget is managed by the Head of Service so team members are unable to 

provide a comment on this. 

 We consider the support received from this corporate support service to be Good. 

Housing & Supporting 

People 

 Both Housing and Supporting People corporate staffing budgets are regularly monitored and discussed 

with the Housing and SP Manager, together with both service team leaders.  Any irregularities in terms 

of actual or projected expenditure identified by the relevant accountant are addressed with the service 

manager and are rectified accordingly or an explanation is provided. 

 Similarly, both the Supporting People and Homelessness Prevention grant funding (part of Housing 

Support Grant) are monitored and any amendments to the annual spend plans are communicated to 

F&A and are discussed to ensure expenditure meets the T&C’s of each grant and that costs are coded 

correctly.  

 Assistance is often sought for salary costs when commissioning staff posts out of these grants 

 Across the PASS services; the support received from this corporate support service is considered to be 

Good. 

Leisure, Culture & Sports 

Development 

 The team budget is managed by the Leisure, Culture and Sports Development Manager with the 

support of an Accountant.  The Accountant provides financial information on a monthly basis. The 

service and support from the Accountant is excellent, however because of a lack of an integrated 

accruals financial system the information is often out of date and requires us to maintain an excel 

database to ensure up to date information on spend. 

 We consider the support received from this corporate support service to be Good 

Rights of Way  We are supported greatly by the Rights of Way accountant; Karen Rees; and she can be called on at 

short notice and will reply as quickly as she can, and also key links are there with Geoff Francis in 

relation to the Active Travel capital funding.  They are always at hand to offer advice and support when 

they can and also go above and beyond with help with financial spreadsheets etc. 

 We consider the support received from this corporate support service to be Good. 

 

The holistic judgment in relation to support received from Finance & Accountancy is Good 
 

Legal Services 
Employability  We have limited involvement with Legal Services.  We tend to utilise them at key times when projects 

are being signed off or where relationship agreements are required to be put in place. 

 We consider the support received from this corporate support service to be Good. 

Business Support & 

Inward Investment 

 The Legal Department offer excellent support with issuing loan agreement and legal charges for our 

Houses into Homes Loan scheme and Targeted Regeneration Investment Programme.  There can be 

delays in completing some of these tasks due to capacity. 

 We have received excellent support from the solicitors with potential defaulting loan projects.  They 

have offered support and advice when needed and supported us through the process. 

 Legal also support with tenancy for Orbit Centre and are part of the Orbit Management Team.   

 We consider the support received from this corporate support service to be Mixed. 

Environmental Health  As a front line regulatory service we are in regular contact with legal service for legal advice, to take 

forward prosecutions. They also assist with contracts with service providers and sale of property.  

 The support from the service is mixed. Where there are legal deadlines to be met e.g. getting cases to 

court within the requisite time periods this works well.  

 However, the legal service do not seem to have any sense of urgency or accountability in terms of 

deadlines for other matters. In addition there is not always a recognition that we do not have the skills 

in house to progress issues and may need to engage specialist legal advice e.g. enforced sale and this 

has caused unnecessary delays. 

 We consider the support received from this corporate support service to be Good. 

External Funding Team  We have limited involvement with our colleagues within Legal Services, however, when we require 

contracts to be signed or are seeking legal advice the legal representatives are always on hand to 

answers any queries or clarify any points on our behalf. 

Strategic Regeneration  Strategic Regeneration requires the support of Legal on any programme developed.  This can range 

from specific focused advice or grant agreement / legal charge support – depending on the programme 

and its complexity. It is not as imperative as Procurement and Accountancy but support is needed to 

Page 30



Page 9 of 40 
 

support service delivery.   There is a risk to service delivery if legal requirement wasn’t sought 

appropriately as there are grant conditions that need to be complied with and also many project have 

complex legal issues that are often time restricted. 

 We consider the support received from this corporate support service to be Mixed. 

PASS Services  Legal department are often sought for advice on community safety and ASB issues. We have found 

them to be very supportive and accessible at short notice. Where we are taking formal action such as 

closure orders they are reliable and their support has been excellent. They clearly set out their role and 

how they are there to support and at what points they take the lead. 

 The Trading Standards service works well with our colleagues in legal. Legal provides advice and 

assistance with ongoing criminal case work. Colleagues meet with each other to discuss evidential and 

legal matters in order for criminal matters to then be presented in the Courts.   

 Licensing has an excellent working relationship with the Legal department.  They are always available to 

provide advice and support.  We work with Legal on prosecution cases, committee hearings and 

complex issues, as well as queries arising during normal work activities.   

 Across the PASS services; the support received from this corporate support service is considered to be 

Good. 

Housing & Supporting 

People 

 Housing will seek the support of legal services as part of the review process for homelessness decisions. 

A legal representative sits on the review panel to ensure we are adhering to legislative guidance and 

that our homelessness decisions are legally sound. In the majority of cases the original decision of the 

officer is upheld. However, some decisions have been overturned. This has then provided a learning 

opportunity for the housing solutions team on how to draft an effective legal decision and how much 

evidence needs to be collated to support these decisions. The outcome of the reviews and the quality of 

notes has fed into the development of a six weekly audit process within the housing solutions team to 

effectively monitor the quality of case notes and letters. Any improvements needed are then put as 

actions within the six weekly support sessions as further training needs or to highlight areas of good 

practice.    

 There are occasions where a decision is upheld by the review panel but the applicant does not agree on 

a point of law and will appeal to the County Court. This is a stressful outcome for the relevant team 

member. However, the legal department provide a good level of support around the process and will 

seek external advice as needed. Even though the last appeal found against the Local Authority it did 

provide further learning outcomes for the team about how we work collaboratively with other 

departments in order to collate the most appropriate evidence to support any decision we make. 

 There have been delays with HR and getting timely and appropriate advice around the transfers of deed 

of ownership for some projects.  This needed to be completed in a shortened time-frame due to the 

financial implications to a partner organisation.  This delay could have damaged this relationship. 

 We consider the support received from this corporate support service to be Mixed. 

Leisure, Culture & Sports 

Development  

 In terms of the support from Legal we have received a large amount of support and have developed 

good working relationships in relation to Leisure and Cultural services. However, in terms of some of 

the other areas of work, such as the defects at the Splash-pad in Cyfarthfa Park, because of capacity 

issues this work as become less of a priority.   

 We consider the support received from this corporate support service to be Good. 

Rights of Way  We have a great deal of contact with the legal department due to the complexity of rights of way issues 

and the fact the notices have to be prepared by solicitors.  We also source legal advice from them, we 

also have barrister involvement through the legal department, some legal work is sourced out to 

barristers due to the complexity of the work and the resources in the legal department,  The support 

we have in generally good but on occasions we have struggled to get the advice in writing. 
 

The holistic judgment in relation to support received from Legal Services is Good 
 

Procurement 
Employability  We currently have limited contact to procurement.  We have been in the past heavily supported by the 

team in previous funding opportunities 

Business Support & 

Inward Investment 

 For each of our grant and loans applications we carry out due diligence checks with the procurement 

department.  We also do this for tenants at Orbit to safeguard the centre in the long term.  This is 

always carried out quickly and efficiently and allows us to make decision of grant/loan awards. 

 We consider the support received from this corporate support service to be Good. 

Environmental Health  We have limited contact with procurement but in terms of ordering goods and services we have always 

found them to be accessible and helpful.  

 Of concern is the lack of resilience since the last round of VER and sickness. We recently had a vehicle 

on the road with out of date vehicle tax for a period of one month. 

 We consider the support received from this corporate support service to be Good. 

Page 31



Page 10 of 40 
 

External Funding Team  The Procurement Team are always on hand to advise the team regarding tenders / RFQ’s and explain 

the shortlisting and contract management scenarios thereafter. The Procurement Team are really 

proactive in terms of attending meetings to explain procurement processes which has been extremely 

useful for members of the team. In terms of the wider procurement team we again work well with 

other officers in terms of evolving our Petty Cash, paying of invoices and accessing past invoices when 

needed. 

 We consider the support received from this corporate support service to be Good. 

Strategic Regeneration  A close working relationship with Procurement is vital for service delivery within Strategic 

Regeneration.  All programmes that are delivered require the team to commission services and support 

has been required to tender for construction projects, masterplans and the appointment of 

consultants.  Also, there are many complex issues on large scale capital projects that require specific 

procurement advice to ensure we not only follow MTCBC Procurement Rules but meet the 

requirements of external funders.  There is a risk to service delivery if procurement support wasn’t so 

readily available, as programme development and delivery is time constrained and advice is needed 

intensely at key points within a programme. 

 We consider the support received from this corporate support service to be Good. 

PASS Services  Community safety has had no contact with Procurement this year. 

 Trading Standards has not had any need to seek support from our colleagues in Procurement. 

 Licensing has had limited contact with the Procurement Team. 

 Across the PASS services; limited support/contact has been received from this corporate support service  

Housing & Supporting 

People 

 All projects commissioned by the Supporting People grant are arranged through our Procurement 

Service.  This will include the initial documentation required to advertise and to request quotations 

from potential tenderers, right the way through to the final implementation of a scheme, where 

contracts are issued to external organisations. 

 Supporting People will also consult with Procurement annually to arrange for new contracts to be 

issued to providers for existing schemes, when funding is distributed annually from Welsh Government.  

 We consider the support received from this corporate support service to be Good. 
Leisure, Culture and 

Sports Development 

 We currently have limited contact to Procurement.   

Rights of Way  We have limited contact on a day to day basis with procurement in relation to Rights of Way day to day 

issues, we do contact with them in relation to active travel procurement for schemes etc. they are 

always at hand for any advice which is sought. 
 

The holistic judgment in relation to support received from Procurement is Good 
 

Business Change 
Employability  Limited contact – last contact linked to efficiencies and business cases to support efficiencies 

Business Support & 

Inward Investment 

 We have had limited contact with the Business Change Unit over the past 12 months 

Environmental Health  As a service manager I have found this to be the least valuable of the support services to us . We have 

had quite a bit of engagement with Business Change over the years as a result of the efficiencies 

agenda.  There is a lack of communication and there appears to be multiple work streams ongoing of 

which we are largely kept in the dark. As a service manager you will be required to provide information 

on a short turnaround and are often not kept informed about the outcomes/outputs of the work 

stream. Some of the work streams seem to repeat work undertaken by paid consultants and others 

don’t seem to link with work streams being undertaken by other support services. 

 We consider the support received from this corporate support service to be Poor. 

Strategic Regeneration  There has been limited contact with this team and no work has been undertaken in conjunction with 

Business Change directly through the Strategic Regeneration team.  The only involvement has been 

through wider meetings such as CRPPH and through direct meetings in relation to the workstreams set 

up through CMT / SLT. 

External Funding Team  With regards to the Business Change Team, there has been limited (if any) engagement with the 

External Funding Team. 

PASS Services  In relation to projects that the BCU report on, no practical support being received by community safety. 

 Trading Standards has not had need to seek support from our colleagues in Business Change. 

 Licensing has had limited contact with the Business Change Team since the process mapping exercise in 

2017. 

 Across the PASS services; limited support/contact has been received from this corporate support 

service. 

Page 32



Page 11 of 40 
 

Housing & Supporting 

People 

 Housing had some contact with Business Change some 18 months ago, when changes were being made 

to the structure of the One Stop Shop and Reception Services.  We assisted Business Change in 

completing multiple ‘swim lanes’ so that they were able to identify where positive and effective 

improvements could be made to the delivery of front line services in order to make efficiencies and add 

value to the organisation.    

 Some staff have also utilised the skills of some staff within Business Change for help in administration 

tasks such as setting up of formula on Excel spreadsheets that has been required for the more complex 

data.  Other than that, knowledge of what Business Change’s remit is minimal. 

 We consider the support received from this corporate support service to be Poor. 
Leisure, Culture and 

Sports Development 

 We have had little contact with the Business Change over the past 12 months. 

Rights of Way  We have had little contact with the Business Change over the past 12 months. 
 

The holistic judgment in relation to support received from Business Change is that there has been Limited 

Contact only 
 

Performance & Scrutiny 
Employability  Employability have worked extremely well with the performance and scrutiny team.   

 We have linked in well to develop our understanding of sustainable development principles. 

 Good dialogue takes place when producing scrutiny reports.  This ensure that robust approach is taken 

when preparing reports.  It also provides an opportunity for the performance team to develop 

understanding of our service areas and how it complements the 5 ways of working. 

 We consider the support received from this corporate support service to be Good. 

Business Support & 

Inward Investment 

 Our contact with Performance & Scrutiny tends only to be when data is requested, however, the 

support has been excellent. 

 We consider the support received from this corporate support service to be Good. 

Environmental Health  Over the course of the last 12 months we have worked with Democratic Services in a number of ways. 

We have involvement through the performance framework reporting on PAM’s. The service had 

provided honest advice and feedback acting as a trusted critical friend when we have prepared reports 

for Council, Cabinet and Scrutiny. They have provided help and guidance on the newly invigorated self-

evaluation framework. 

 We consider the support received from this corporate support service to be Good. 

External Funding Team   The External Funding Team work extremely well with the Performance & Scrutiny Team (namely Maria 

Purnell) who has worked tirelessly over the reporting period to ensure that the wider department 

report on important aspects of work, are fully prepared for Scrutiny and Cabinet sessions and are 

constantly reminders officers of the ‘Five Ways of Working’ and self-evaluation principles.  

 We consider the support received from this corporate support service to be Good. 

Strategic Regeneration  Working with Performance and Scrutiny Team is a key requirement to support our service delivery.  The 

Team provides support for any corporate requirements from the Corporate Plan, Self-Evaluation and 

Scrutiny.   The support of the team is important to help understand what the requirements are of any 

documentation that is required to be produced corporately. 

 We consider the support received from this corporate support service to be Good. 

PASS Services  PASS Services have had limited contact with the Performance & Scrutiny Team; however, we consider 

the support received from this corporate support service to have been Good. 

Housing & Supporting 

People 

 Our contact with Performance & Scrutiny tends only to be when data is requested from Housing or 

Supporting People for KPI’s or annual returns to Welsh Government and for exercises such as this.  The 

support to assist in completion of self-evaluation and considering the five ways of working, wider 

legislative agenda and well-being goals has been fantastic from Maria.  

 We consider the support received from this corporate support service to be Good. 

Leisure, Culture & Sports 

Development  

 There is a strong relationship with the performance and scrutiny team which has supported and 

challenged the service area to develop. In addition to this, the Performance Team have helped the 

department to develop methods of showcasing the impact of the work undertaken. 

 We consider the support received from this corporate support service to be Good. 

Rights of Way  There has been contact with performance and scrutiny when officers have had to attend scrutiny in 

relation to the active travel programme, Maria Purnell has been supportive during this process. 

 Extra support has been provided by Maria to go through the whole self-evaluation process which has 

been invaluable. 

 We consider the support received from this corporate support service to be Good. 
 

The holistic judgment in relation to support received from Performance & Scrutiny is Good 

Page 33



Page 12 of 40 
 

 

 

 

 

ICT Services 
Employability  We utilise ICT services for all of our matters related to ICT within Employability.  This ranges from 

gaining advice regarding equipment, repairs, advice over the phone regarding software issues and 

dealing with networking issues. 

 We consider the support received from this corporate support service to be Mixed. 

Business Support & 

Inward Investment 

 We have strong links with the IT department to provide state of the art facilities, future proofing the 

centre.  They provide a centralised coordination of digital infrastructure, networking, phone systems, 

configuration and administration. 

 We consider the support received from this corporate service to be Good. 

Environmental Health  We have positive relationships with the ICT team and have always found them to be helpful.  We have 

recently become one of the pathfinding authorities for Register a Food Business which allows 

consumers to register on line through a single portal and have the information drop directly into the 

Tascomi database and this seems to be working well. 

 The decision to take control of IT replacement corporately is welcome particularly when we have no 

departmental budget for replacement of IT and this has been a bone of contention. It should also 

overcome purchases of equipment which become obsolete within a short period of purchase as there 

will be corporate oversight.  

 There is a sense a frustration around mobile working and we do not seem to be as progressive as other 

LA‘s. There is often a sense of embarrassment when are unable to access IT at meetings or when trying 

to work away from the office. 

 We consider the support received from this corporate support service to be Mixed. 

External Funding Team  The ICT Team are always on hand to assist where possible and if the team have problems with their 

computers for instance a resolution can always be found straight away over the phone. In terms of 

bigger projects, this sometimes takes more time (re-networking of a printer for example) is taking a 

long time, however, we fully understand how strained the department is at present. The ICT team have 

done an excellent piece of work in developing our new Visit Merthyr Website with feedback from users 

being extremely positive. One negative point is that the constant ask to get ICT Request Forms for 

minimal pieces of work takes time and this probably needs looking at going forward. In addition, and 

this is across the full Council – our ICT infrastructure is extremely outdated and certainly affects outputs 

and workloads. This also needs to be considered going forward. 

 With this in mind, we consider the support received from this corporate service to be Good. 

Strategic Regeneration  The Strategic Regeneration Team would only require the support of IT when there are any issues 

identified – this means we have had limited support.  This is not a regular occurrence and is not a 

requirement to support service delivery. 

PASS Services  The Community Safety Team maintain an excellent working relationship with our IT department. Having 

recently undergone computer and software upgrades across the authority everything was done with 

ease and limited disruption.  On a day to day basis being co-located in the same building helps as 

response is quick and service delivery disruption is limited.  In addition we have been working with IT 

closely for management and upgrading of our dated CCTV equipment. IT have provided welcome 

support in challenging and shaping our future service with our external contractor in complex technical 

areas. 

 Trading Standards maintain positive relationships with the ICT team.  With our technology being quite 

old, there are occasions where we have had to call on support from the team and these have usually 

been resolved.  IT have developed and maintain an Intelligence Database for the service which is 

essential for a service which relies on recording intelligence to develop its own work flow and also 

maintaining a confidential source register.  Licensing officers find the IT department to be helpful and 

reliable.  .  The recent computer upgrade was completed with limited disruption.  Having the 

department in the same building is very useful for dealing with day-to-day issues.   

 Across the PASS services; the support received from this corporate support service has been Good  

Housing & Supporting 

People 

 Both Housing and Supporting People frequently utilise our IT services generally for assistance with 

system failures, which appear to be happening more frequently.  We have also had an office 

restructure in recent months, where IT where required to move IT equipment to other desks.   

 IT are also in the process of upgrading IT hardware within the department as part of a corporate 

programme and so are regularly working with our team on this.  There were issues with this process as 

IT did not ensure that all programmes needed by the department were installed on the new PCs. This 

resulted in a disruption to the service as we were having difficulties in establishing who had come into 

the One Stop Shop for housing assistance. This issue arose again when the computers in the One Stop 

Shop were changed which was during the busiest time of the service.  

Page 34



Page 13 of 40 
 

 We consider the support received from this corporate support service to be Mixed. 
Leisure, Culture & Sports 

Development 

 We have had a steady engagement with both ICT and Print over the past 12 months, with the 

development of the Active Merthyr website and also the regular design and printing of paper based 

resources. 

 We consider the support received from this corporate support service to be Good. 

Rights of Way  We don’t have day to day contact with IT but they are always at hand when we need assistance 

especially with the specialized GIS we have. 
 

The holistic judgment in relation to support received from IT Services is Good. 
 

Democratic Services 
Employability  We have had limited contact with Democratic Services over the past 12 months. 

Business Support & 

Inward Investment 

 We have had limited contact with the Business Change Unit over the past 12 months other than to 

involve local councillors at events such as Meet the Buyer Events and Meanwhile launches. 

Environmental Health  We have limited contact with Democratic Services; this usually involves reports for Cabinet and Full 

Council. 

External Funding Team  We have limited contact with Democratic Services since the Performance & Scrutiny Team left the 

department to join Business Change. 

Strategic Regeneration   The team has not had any recourse to seek support from Democratic Services in the last 12 months and 

is not a requirement for service delivery so we would include a judgment of limited contact. 

PASS Services  Community Services has had no contact with Democratic Services. 

 The Trading Standards service has not had any need to seek support from our colleagues in Democratic 

Services with the exception of viewing the electoral roll with regards to the prevention/detection of a 

crime.   

 Licensing officers have a good working relationship with Democratic Services.  Our involvement with 

the Department is limited to arranging Committee meetings and providing them with the relevant 

reports and documents for the agendas.  We find the Officers to be helpful and supportive.   

 Across the PASS Services, we consider the support received from this corporate service to be Good. 

Housing & Supporting 

People 

 Neither services have any regular contact with Democratic Services.  

 When we have had queries, staff have always provided the necessary information and advice promptly. 

For example, we recently contacted DS to request a written statement to add to a letter that was being 

sent to our 50+ forum members, reminding them to register to vote and the option of receiving a 

postal vote in respect of the forthcoming General Election in Dec 2019. From this, DS recognised that 

this forum would provide an ideal opportunity for future consultation events with older persons, which 

would improve partnership working and internal collaboration.  

 We consider the support received from this corporate support service to be Good. 

Leisure, Culture and 

Sports Development 

 We have had limited contact with Democratic Services over the past 12 months. 

Rights of Way  We have regular contact with the democratic services department as we hold rights of way committee 

and they facilitate it, this seems to be problem free. 

 We consider the support received from this corporate support service to be Good.   
 

The holistic judgment in relation to support received from Democratic Services is that there has been 

Limited Contact only. 
 

Business Support Services 
Environmental Health  Provide a wide range of support services including, maintenance of database including input of 

premises details, inspection reports, production of performance reports, data for responding to  FOI 

requests  , uploading of Food Hygiene Ratings, some typing, logging service requests,  responding to 

searches, raising of invoices, maintenance of records on  EDM etc.  We have an excellent relationship 

with the service without which we would not be able to function.  

 Our only concern is that at times it is overstretched and it does suffer from SPOD’s which leave us very 

exposed should these individuals be unwell or seek alternative employment. There have been instances 

where complaints which may have significant repercussions have not been inputted into the database 

system for several days which means an officer will not be aware of the complaint. Most recently a 

complaint relating to health and safety and cases of illness relating to the swimming pool came in on 

the 4th of the month and were not recorded on the database until the 11th. 

 We consider the support received from this corporate support service to be Mixed. 

 

 

Page 35



Page 14 of 40 
 

PASS Services  Across the PASS services; limited contact has been had with this corporate support service  

Housing & Supporting 

People 

 Supporting People Team have also had assistance from Sian Thomas in setting up the SNAP system 

which allows our support providers to submit their ‘Outcomes’ data to the SP team in a consistent and 

user friendly manner. This is a Welsh Government requirement. This method allows the Quality 

Assurance Officer to analyse the data more easily and gives less room for user error in terms of data 

input.  

 Business  is also instrumental in the support to enable us to effectively manger and administer the 

Disabled Facilities Grant (DFG) projects and if transferred to RCT will remain POC with Housing Strategy 

to return required info to Welsh Government and keep track of our demand and spend locally.   

 We consider the support received from this corporate support service to be Good.  

Rights of Way  We have had little involvement with the Business support services over the past 12 months, we have 

had contact to have invoices processed and these have been turned around quickly. 

 We consider the support received from this corporate support service to be Good. 

 

The holistic judgment in relation to support received from Business Support Services is that there has 

been Limited Contact only. 
 

Contact Centre 
PASS Services  There are inconstancies sometimes when the Contact Centre take calls regarding the detail they 

provide.  Some calls have been taken in the past when they should have been referred to Citizens 

Advice Consumer Services resulting in customers getting delayed advice.   

 Licensing officers find the service from the Contact Centre to be inconsistent.  As part of the process 

mapping exercise / Contact Centre restructure, calls no longer come direct to the Licensing 

Department.  Messages are logged by the Contact Centre on the Call Logger system.  We do find 

instances where incorrect numbers or incorrect names are recorded.  Although requests have been 

made for the messages to be more than “please call” to enable us to allocate to the correct Officers, 

this still often happens.  We also sometimes receive complaints that messages have not been logged. 

 Across the PASS Services we consider the support received from this corporate support service to be 

Mixed. 

Housing & Supporting 

Protection 

 The service we receive is inconsistent. There is a department number for the Housing Solutions Team 

but this is not being consistently used with the majority of calls being put through directly to staff. 

 There is still a high number of calls being put through to housing that are not housing related. This 

provides a poor customer service as often they have been waiting a while prior to being put through to 

housing and straining already stretched resources 

 The Housing specialist at one stop shop has been fundamental to helping the service deliver its 

customer service and statutory functions and once all front of house staff are trained this will help 

further. 

 We consider the support received from this corporate support service to be Poor. 

 

The holistic judgment in relation to support received from Contact Centre is Mixed/Poor. 
 

 

 

EMPLOYABILITY: 

Human Resources: 

 Working in partnership to develop the Employability Pledge.  Through this work within Strong Economy theme which has led to the 

development of a work experience policy within the local authority 

 PSB links to Community Regeneration are prompting positive dialogue and consideration is being given to developing apprenticeships 

within the local authority. 

 HR team are readily available to answer queries/provide advice 

 Positive collaborative working taking place on the design of a ‘Pathway to Work’  between Social Service, Community Regeneration and 

HR – to allow children looked after to access more opportunity linked to upskilling and world of work. 

Corporate Communications: 

 Development of specific Facebook pages to promote individual employability programmes 

 Development of uniformed marketing materials to provide an identity to employability programmes 

Good Practice: 

Page 36



Page 15 of 40 
 

 Development of video footage for the Aspire Programme to celebrate successes of young people involved in the SAP, demonstrate 

personal impact by young people, and demonstrates key linkages to local employers in a Welsh Government priority sector. 

 Development of video footage to highlight Employer Liaison Officer function within Communities for Work/Communities for Work Plus 

at a recent Bro Taf wide conference.  This was received very well and was done in collaboration with Rhondda Cynon Taf.   

 Regular contact with Corporate Communications as they now share an office with the Community Regeneration Team 

 At every team meeting, we focus on a PR Planner to plan key events/milestones that require some PR. 

 All materials developed are bi-lingual 

Finance & Accountancy: 

 Regular catch ups to discuss Mid Term Financial Plan 

 Individual team dialogue at claim periods takes place every quarter.  This ensures that we are focussed on the claim, discuss allocations 

of match and ensures that everyone involved in the claims process has full view of claim submission before formal sign off and 

submission. 

 Having a dedicated Accountant to the Employability Programmes allows them to be fully focussed on intricate detail.  This approach has 

allowed us to maximise grant opportunities where funding sources are not directly aligned.   

Performance & Scrutiny: 

 Support given to embed a well-being toolkit to measure the impact of the employability services offered by the local authority. 

 Dedicated resource to support the development of reports linking service successes to demonstrate meeting well-being objectives and 

sustainable development principles. 

 Aligning staff from the Performance & Scrutiny team that understand the service area of Employability. 

 Redesigning of Community Regeneration, Public Protection and Housing Board to ensure greater understanding of each service areas 

whilst promoting greater connectivity. 

 

BUSINESS SUPPORT & INWARD INVESTMENT: 

ICT Services: 

 Forged strong links with the IT department to provide state of the art facilities, future proofing a vibrant and forward thinking business 

centre to match modern day requirements for businesses in varying sectors. 

Legal Services: 

 We have developed lots of links to the 5 ways of working providing support to develop leases and legal charges which limits risk in the 

long term in terms of securing grants/loans and tenancy for Orbit Centre tenants. 

 

ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH: 

 We have recently carried out an exercise to evaluate our performance against the Chartered Institute of Environmental Health Practice 

Standards the outcomes of which will be reported to scrutiny and incorporated into the self-evaluation process. 

 Proactive engagement with stakeholders to identify consumer perceptions of the Food Hygiene Rating Scheme. resulting in a 

presentation to the All Wales Food Hygiene Rating Steering Group and myth busters which will be posted on our website. 

 

EXTERNAL FUNDING TEAM: 

Human Resources: 

 Always supportive in terms of recruitment. 

 Quick turnaround of job evaluations and employment advice / general questions. 

Corporate Communications: 

 Officer resides within the department four days a week, which in turn means that success stories (including the writing of press 

releases) is very fast and reactive.  Therefore, this collective funding of a dedicated Communications Officer means that we 

maximise the benefit and good news stories being developed by the department. 

 Jackie Huybs is a key asset in terms of writing our new Visit Merthyr Guide and developing narrative for our online platforms. 

 2019 Vlogger – Blogger Visit was developed with Jackie Huybs and she will be supporting the 2020 event (which is three times 

bigger) along with the Social Media Officer. 

Finance & Accountancy: 

 Quick turnaround of requests which assists with productivity of officers. 

 Really supportive and flexible even though the department must be stretched 

 Because our projects are account managed by one single point of contact this means that they are fully aware of the minute details 

of each project. 

 

Page 37



Page 16 of 40 
 

Legal Services: 

 Great relationship where advice is always given within short periods of time. 

Procurement: 

 Always on hand to advise and support the External Funding Team with a variety of projects. 

Business Change (namely Performance & Scrutiny Team): 

 Excellent resources that is well informed and respected across the department. 

 Great sounding board for projects, realignment to corporate priorities and the five ways of working.  

 The fact that the Performance & Scrutiny component, i.e. Maria Purnell knows the department inside out certainly helps with 

collating information and objective setting long-term.  

ICT Services: 

 The development of the new Visit Merthyr Website is excellent and feedback extremely positive form the sector and internal 

stakeholders. 

 Always quick to resolve computer problems over the phone (usually after 8:30am mind). 

STRATEGIC REGENERATION: 

 The team has a close working relationship with the Corporate Communications Team which has helped deliver the Communications 

Strategy for the Cyfarthfa Plan and for promoting key events that are being delivered within the Town Centre.  Also, the team is 

responsible for communicating key milestones of a project which they have led on for the Bus Station.  

 Relationships with Accountancy have improved significantly over the years in terms of process with regular meetings being held on 

the Capital Programme which ensures that the Accountancy team are always updated for reporting purposes within the MTFP.  

Claims are always developed in conjunction with Accountancy also which gives additional re-assurance to the Strategic 

Regeneration Team in terms of budget management.  

 Procurement were heavily involved in the appointment of the consultants developing The Cyfarthfa Plan which led to the 

successful appointment of world-renowned architects.  The support of the team resulted in a high end brief, a detailed open and 

transparent tender process and advice for interviewing which provided skills development and to not only the Strategic 

Regeneration Team but to our external partner the Design Commission for Wales  

PASS SERVICES: 

Community Safety 

 IT CCTV UPGRADE – demonstrates good practice. Recognising the specific skills and knowledge that IT officers possess we 

approached IT and included them from the outset. 

 Working with the Legal department to successfully obtain closure orders. 

Trading Standards 

 Working with IT to develop and maintain the Intelligence Database. The Regional Intelligence Officer for Wales recognises the 

benefit of such a database and uses it has a good practice example within other local authorities, especially when it comes to the 

maintenance of a source register. 

 Meeting with legal whilst a criminal case is progressing is essential. This has led to successful prosecutions in the criminal courts. 

Licensing 

 Licensing officers have an extremely close working relationship with Legal.  We work with them on prosecution cases and 

committee hearings.  They provide invaluable support and advice for any extraordinary queries which crop up in our day to day 

work. 

HOUSING & SUPPORTING PEOPLE: 

 Six weekly internal department audits of open and closed cases to evaluate the effectiveness of the case notes in demonstrating 

our adherence to statutory guidance and minimising the number of reviews of our statutory decisions 

 We will use corporate communications in order to promote pieces of work we are doing in order to gain public opinion around key 

areas to not only identify gaps in service provision but to provide a strategic overview of housing issues affecting local residents and 

the best way forward to address these issues either in the short or long term.  

 Corporate communications are a valuable partner in the promoting of new housing projects and highlighting pieces of work that 

have had a significant positive impact on residents. We also use them to promote older person events in order to reduce loneliness 

and isolation within the community. 

 Regular meetings with Accountancy to monitor budgets and look at where we can make savings.  Sometimes we are able to identify 

underspends and are able to via funds to other grants (subject to grant T&C’s), in order to maximise corporate service delivery and 

maximising value for money.  

 When funding new projects through the Supporting People Grant, we will liaise with Procurement for advice on preparing the 

relevant documents to ensure they contain all the relevant information and are adhering to the correct legal processes. 

Page 38



Page 17 of 40 
 

 We contribute to both the living well SOAP and Working Life SOAP by helping people live independently and reducing 

homelessness, projects are developed and commissioned in line with the 5 ways of working and support is delivered in line with the 

SSWB Act (2014) 

LEISURE, CULTURE & SPORTS DEVELOPMENT: 

 Self-Evaluation:  The Team have undertaken the self-evaluation process to aid the process of understanding what we do, why we do 

it and whether it can be done differently or in a better way to produce better outcomes. 

The team members are thus able to share the process and outcomes and this contributes to a team ethic. 

 Educational Work: The last year has been a turning point in the building of relationships with schools and educational providers and 

integrating the work of the team in promoting healthier lifestyles and choices into the school curriculum and supporting teaching 

staff and students to take responsibility for their health and wellbeing. 

The current Chief Education Officer, has embraced the value and opportunities that the support of the Active Merthyr team can 

bring to improving the outcomes of young people in education. 

 Sport Wales: The relationship with Sport Wales has never been so strong, with a mutual understanding of the roles each has to play 

in the wider corporate and national agendas linked to sport and physical activity. Regular meetings are held with representatives 

from Sport Wales and through the relationship with Sport Wales there are now strong links with other authorities in the Central 

South Cluster, resulting in joint working and a collaborative bid to Sport Wales to deliver as a cluster sport and physical activities 

across the region. In addition to this, Merthyr Tydfil, RCT and Bridgend Councils, along with Public Health Wales were successful in 

attracting £480,000 of funding across the Cwm Taf Morganwg area to deliver a collaborative project through the Healthy and 

Active Fund for older people. 

RIGHTS OF WAY: 

Corporate Communications 

 Regular contact with Corporate Communications as they are based within the Corporate Communications office; 

 Facebook live broadcasts - when we had one of the Trevithick day celebrations had an extensive reach with lots of positive 

comments 

Finance & Accountancy 

 The excellent relationship with accountancy staff means they go above and beyond in many instances, such as collating all the 

evidence of defrayment for grant applications, preparing the timesheet formula to support us to more effectively use the system. 

Performance & Scrutiny 

 One-to-one session with Maria Purnell to go through the self-evaluation process to help staff to understand the form has been 

invaluable. 

 

 

Employability: 

 SOAP – ‘Working Life’ 

 Corporate Plan (Focus on the Future) 

 PSB Strong Economy ‘Employability Pledge’ 

 MTCBC Work Experience Policy 

 Scrutiny Reports 

 Well Being Scale & Well Being Data 

 DRAFT ‘Pathway to Work’ policy 

 Social Media pages 

 Marketing Material linked to Communities for Work and Communities for Work Plus 

 Video Footage promoting impact of projects – Aspire Video and ELO video 

Business Support & Inward Investment: 

 Tenancy Agreements 

 Legal Charges and Agreements 

 SLA 

 Working Life SOAP 

 MTCBC Corporate Plan (Focus on the Future) 

Environmental Health: 

 Report to Scrutiny 7th December 2019 

 Self-Evaluation documents 

 Presentation to FHRS Steering Group 

Evidence: 

Page 39



Page 18 of 40 
 

 Evaluation documents for assessment of performance against Practice Standards 

External Funding Team: 

 Annual Performance Report 2018-19 

 Self-Evaluation Documents (Question 1) 

 SOAP 

 Scrutiny & Cabinet Reports (Destination Management, x2 transnational projects, SMS Project etc.) 

 2019 Destination Day PowerPoint Presentation  

Strategic Regeneration: 

 The Cyfarthfa Plan  

 MTCBC Website  

 Capital Programme updates  

 Claims for Programmes  

 Contract – Ian Ritchie Architects 

PASS Services: 

Community Safety 

 IT CCTV upgrade 

 Legal Department closure orders  

Trading Standards 

 Prosecutions – cases and results 

 Intelligence database 

 Working Life SOAP 

 MTCBC Corporate Plan (Focus on the Future) 

Licensing 

 Prosecutions – cases and results 

 Committee reports 

Housing & Supporting People 

 Social media campaigns carried out at the implementation point of Living Merthyr Tydfil an during the drafting of the homelessness 

strategy 

 A reduction in the number of reviews being received. Where reviews are received a reduction in the number of decisions that are 

being overturned 

 Emails sent regularly to Corporate Communications to request social media posts are submitted on the weekly Active Ageing Walks, 

50+ Forum events, Older Persons Commissioner for Wales events held locally (Oct 2019 being most recent). 

 Recently had assistance from IT service to improve corporate website for Supporting People Services, by adding this to the A-Z 

search, as it was identified that it was difficult to easily find information on this service online.  

 Housing are currently monitoring the calls received from the call centre partly to establish the frequent reasons for the public 

contacting us as part of our service efficiency. The other reason is to monitor the level of inappropriate calls in order to feed back 

to the contact centre.  

Leisure, Culture & Sports Development  

 Working Life SOAP 

 Best Start to Life SOAP 

 Living Well SOAP 

 Corporate Plan (Focus on the Future) 

 Sport Wales Annual Performance Reports 

 Sport Wales Expression of Interest Document in relation to collaborative Working 

 Educational Business Improvement Plan 

Rights of Way 

 Evidence of Facebook Live on the web showing 7,451 people were reached. 

 

 

 

 

Page 40



Page 19 of 40 
 

 

 

In light of the evidence given above, identify areas that the service would like to develop in order to do better. 

 

Business Change: 

Employability  Business Change – unsure of their role as, to date we have had limited contact.  We want to develop a greater 

understanding of the support that can be gained from this department. 

Environmental 

Health 
 Improve communication channels with Business Change so that it is clear understanding of what work 

streams are ongoing. When the service is involved with a particular work stream clarity on what is being 

requested and why. Feedback on the milestones achieved as part of each work stream and what the final 

outcomes of each work stream are. 

External Funding 

Team 

 Still unsure of their role within the Council and the work they have done to date. 

 It would be good to understand their direction of work (are they there to save money, advise departments on 

working smarter - not harder or there to assist departments more (as examples). 

Rights of Way  Unsure of the role of Business Change – to date, we have limited contact. 

 

ICT Services: 

Environmental 

Health 

 Improved engagement with IT to deliver mobile working solutions that work 

External Funding 

Team 

 Having to complete ICT Request Forms for minimal pieces of work seems unnecessary and time consuming. 

PASS Services  Engage further with IT to evolve the intelligence database regarding the change from 5 x 5 x 5 to 3 x 5 x 2 

intelligence reports. 

Rights of Way  Review the need to complete an ICT Request Form for minimal pieces of work as this can seem unnecessary 

and time-consuming. 

 

Human Resources: 

Business Support & 

Inward Investment  

 Greater understanding of policies and training opportunities for all members of staff and the Cohort system 

needs to be developed. 

Rights of Way  Need to look at way to improve the response time for requests 

 Need to ensure consistent advice from all members of the HR team 

 

Procurement: 

Strategic 

Regeneration 

 Ensure that we programme in any developments in advance with Procurement as there are limited resources 

within the team and the forward programme  

 

Contact Centre: 

PASS Services  We utilise the Contact Centre to field all telephone calls for the Department and log messages on Call Logger.  

However; we find the service provided to be inconsistent (e.g.) incorrect phone numbers being recorded 

which means we can’t return the call; or messages being limited to “Please call” rather than details of the 

query which makes it difficult to allocate to the right member of staff.  We feel that a better understanding of 

what we require is needed by all staff in the Contact Centre. 

 

Areas for Development: 

Page 41



Page 20 of 40 
 

Corporate Communications: 

Employability   We feel that more resource is required perhaps across the local authority to promote good work, raise the 

profile and share more successes with the public which will challenge the public perception and hopefully 

promote a more positive outlook.  If the current arrangement where we contribute to buying some time from 

a Corporate Communications Officer were to end, this might cause an issue for the Employability Services. 

External Funding 

Team 

 The Corporate Communications Team seem to be doing an excellent job, however, it certainly feels that they 

are under resourced which is probably having an adverse effect on productivity or reach across all Council 

departments. 

 Translation for short social media posts is sometimes time consuming so they possibly need (or Council 

needs) a dedicated number of officers who can react to translation work when needed. 

 There has been a huge shift toward social media and online media, and with this in mind, the fact that the 

current Social Media Officer needs to be ‘self-funding’ seems unsecure and a temporary fix. Not knowing the 

funding constraints of the department doesn’t help and they may be having finance issues 

Strategic 

Regeneration 

 Notify Corporate Communications of key projects within the Strategic Regeneration Team as the work of the 

team is not publicised widely enough.   This is due to resource capacity and time availability due to current 

workloads.   

PASS Services  As part of developing how we work with the public, corporate communications can   

Housing & 

Supporting People 

 Even though there have been some successes and positive ways of using corporate communications this 

service needs to be further utilised. We have excellent outcomes from our early intervention and prevention 

work. This needs to be publicised wider than just within housing to not only promote the good work but to 

highlight a service that is available to help residents at risk of homelessness at an earlier point as part of our 

aim to focus more on prevention rather than crisis management.   

 Greater use of social media and the corporate website to advertise the services that Supporting people can 

provide to people who may be vulnerable and at threat of losing their home and becoming homeless. We 

need to promote this service more so as to ensure we are identifying individuals in need at the very earliest 

opportunity so that all relevant support agencies, as well as SP, can be working with these individuals or 

families in order for them to sustain their accommodation and promote their independence.    

 Request that Corporate Communications publicise key documents more frequently, particularly when this 

evidences good work we are doing, rather than just publishing them on the corporate website where they are 

unlikely to be accessed by the general public.    

 We wish to increase the number of social media posts highlighting the good work completed y the Housing 

Solutions Team.  This needs to be reactive and, as such, delegated responsibility needs to be given to the 

housing department to enable us to tweet and post when needed. One example of where the current system 

falls down is the winter night shelter. It took a whole week for a post to be sorted by Corporate 

Communications but it would have been a more efficient way of working if we could have tweeted 

throughout the day. This may have also gained more volunteers for the shelter. 

Rights of Way  The relationship is with Corporate Communications is positive, the concern is that if and when funding will no 

longer be there that the positive relationship currently experienced will suffer again. 

 

 

 

 

These are the priority areas that need immediate improvement in order to have an impact on outcomes.  Consider 

the judgements- this should be about moving from unsatisfactory to adequate, or from adequate to good.  

Corporate: 

Business Support & 

Inward Investment  
 The information on the corporate website regarding support available for loans, grants and inward 

investment is currently limited and in need of updating. 

Housing & 

Supporting People 

 We need to ensure that the contact centre are appropriately putting calls through to the housing team as 

currently the inappropriate calls are having a negative impact on the service we can deliver due to the volume 

of inappropriate calls. 

 

Priorities for Improvement:  

Page 42



Page 21 of 40 
 

Human Resources: 

PASS Services   Working with Human resources could improve by defining the role and function of both the manager and HR 

department.  

 

Legal: 

Housing & 

Supporting People 
 Even though there is an improvement in the casework being undertaken by the team there is a need for 

continued evaluation and improvement to ensure we are minimising the impact reviews of statutory decisions 

are having on the legal department. This is an ongoing piece of work as part of regular supervision sessions 

and departmental audits of case work 

 

ICT Services: 

Environmental 

Health 

 Improved engagement with IT to deliver mobile working solutions that work 

 

Business Support Services: 

Environmental 

Health 

 Engagement with Businesses Services to evaluate activities which are currently affected by SPOD’s and what 

we can do together to reduce associated risks. 

 

Corporate Communications: 

Housing & 

Supporting People 

 We need to prioritise the highlighting of new services aimed at improving our prevention outcomes to ensure 

better outcomes as there is less impact to a family and applicant if we can prevent homelessness rather than 

manage a crisis when they become homeless.  

 To complement the above, we need to raise further awareness of Supporting People Services through the use 

of social media via corporate communications and more frequent advertisements in MTCBC’s ‘Contact’ 

magazine 

 

Other: 

Strategic 

Regeneration 

 Identify issues / advice required in advance where possible to prevent urgent responses being requested 

where departments have limited resources and capacity to accommodate the timelines provided 

Leisure, Culture & 

Sports 

Development 

 The main priority for improvement over the next year will be to develop the relationship and integration of 

the work undertaken into the Social Services Departments work and in particular, the work with the Looked 

After Children Team. This will improve outcomes for these children in relation to health and wellbeing and 

equip them with similar opportunities to all other children in the borough. 
 

 

  

Page 43



Page 22 of 40 
 

QUESTION 2:  PROVISION & SERVICE DELIVERY 

 

     

Question 2.2:  How well does the service understand and take advantage of opportunities for collaboration and  

                           partnership working? 

 

 

 

Good 

EVALUATION: When answering the question, consider the following: 

 Contribution to existing strategic partnership plans 

 Joint outcomes with other services 

 Existing regional collaborations 

 Partnership with the private or third sectors 

 Partnership with public agencies 

 Support for school improvement (ESTYN focussed – only Education to consider) 

 Support for vulnerable learners (ESTYN focussed – only Education to consider) 

 

 

Contribution to existing strategic partnership plans: 

Employability  Employability services directly contribute to the Council’s Corporate Plan (Focus on the Future). 

 Employability services have actively contributed to the work which has been ongoing in relation to developing 

the Council’s response to the tackling poverty agenda. 

 Employability services have been aligned to the developments of the PSB Cwm Taf Well Being Plan.  Also 

through this work the next phase will focus on the development of employment focussed opportunities within 

the Tourism Sector across Merthyr and RCT. 

 Key links with the overseeing of the Economic Growth Strategy – this will focus on the development of 

partnership links with providers, employers and inward investors over the coming 2 years. 

 Link in with Morgan Sindall, Bus Station developers with their Social Value Plan. 

Business Support & 

Inward Investment 

 Merthyr Tydfil Enterprise Centre opened in 2015 to provide support to new and existing businesses with in 

the borough, offering test trading office space and hot desking. Our team works collaboratively with MTEC, 

The College Merthyr Tydfil, Business Wales and internal departments to deliver a successful enterprise 

programme through the Enterprise Board. 

 We have attended the Town Centre Partnership and contributed to the plan. 

 The team delivers Houses into Homes and Home Improvement Loans for which we work well with the 

Housing department to meet the needs of the community.  

 The team delivers the Targeted Regeneration Investment Thematic Programme which is a regional 

programme delivered with all 10 authorities across the South East Wales region. 

 Joint outcomes with Estates from an orbit asset management perspective and occupancy rates. 

 Events with JCP 

 Employability – all grant applicants are signposted to the Employability team for advice on their recruitment 

and training needs 

Environmental 

Health 

 Environmental Health has a symbiotic relationship with some other Council departments in order to deliver 

shared outcomes e.g. planning, licensing, Highways Engineers.  Collaboration is widespread and is generally 

good both in terms of contributing to strategic partnership plans e.g. redevelopment of the new bus station, 

Trago Mills, and to deliver specific projects e.g.  Environmental Health, Highways Engineers and Corporate 

Communications to engage stakeholders, design and implement of the Air Quality Action Plan to deliver 

improved air quality in Twynyrodyn 

JUDGEMENT

: 

Current Position: 

Page 44



Page 23 of 40 
 

 Contributing to key Council documents (e.g.) Local Development Plan; Corporate strategies (e.g.) Focus on the 

Future; Toilet Strategy; Town Centre Action Plan as well as a number of Strategies on a Page (SOAPS) – 

Working Life; Environmental Wellbeing  

External Funding 

Team 

 The External Funding Team are heavily involved in the development of key strategies including the over-

arching Economic Growth Strategy as well as others. 

 The Programme Manager (who manages the full External Funding Team) is currently writing both a Social 

Enterprise Strategy and new Destination Management Plan for Merthyr Tydfil. 

 The External Funding Team are fully aware of their strategic link to all Corporate Priorities & Plan and the 

wider national strategies such as the Wellbeing and Future Generation (Wales) Act and Tackling Poverty 

Strategy (as examples). 

Strategic 

Regeneration 
 The Strategic Regeneration Team contributes to the Council’s Corporate Plan (Focus on the Future); and 

responds to the Working Life theme within this, via the Working Life SOAP. 

PASS Services  Current contributions to strategic plans include by the Community Safety Team include Cwm Taf strategic 

assessment, PCC Crime Reduction Plan, Cwm Taf Substance Misuse Plan. 

 Trading Standards inputs into the Tobacco Control Delivery Plan for Wales (2017-2020) with regards to the 

work around age restricted sales and illicit cigarettes. The aim of which is to provide direction to reduce 

smoking prevalence in Wales 

 Trading Standards contributes to the work involved in creating the overall Welsh Heads of trading Standards 

(WHOTS) Strategic Assessment. This document is integral to business planning and helps to focus on the 

threats and emerging issues at a local level, in particular the work around illicit tobacco and doorstep crime.  

 Collaborative working exists on a formal basis regarding work around Feed Standard Enforcement. There is a 

Memorandum of Understanding in Place with Rhondda Cynon Taf regarding this that forms part of the Food 

Standards Agency Regional Feed Delivery Strategy. 

 Further Collaborative working exists regarding the use of a Metrological Laboratory in order to maintain the 

standards of our Weighing and measuring equipment. The collaborative agreement has been in place since 

2001. 

 Partnerships with public agencies such as South Wales police, HMRC, Border Force are in existence 

 On a national level; the Trading Standards Service works alongside National Trading Standards (NTS) in work 

around doorstep crime. 

 With regards to the Town Centre Action Plan; Trading Standards contributes towards tackling businesses who 

operate outside the law and therefore protecting the local economy for legitimate business and consumers 

 Trading Standards contributes towards the Town Centre Partnership by providing advice on trading standards 

laws to new and existing business. 

 Collaboration is also undertaken with Citizens Advice Consumer Services (part of the Citizens Advice Bureau) 

in providing consumer advice to the public and also providing an enforcement arm when criminal trading 

standards law is breached. 

 Trading Standards has an ongoing relationship with other council services such as Street Cleansing, Highways, 

Planning and Estates; especially in delivering shared outcomes such as car sales on the roadside and animal 

health and welfare concerns with stray animals.  Trading Standards has worked with Destination Management 

regarding the ‘Made In Merthyr’ Brand and also Waste and Recycling regarding the development of a council 

recycling shop. 

 Licensing contributes to the Cwm Taf Substance Misuse Plan; and the LNE Framework 

Housing & 

Supporting People 

 Housing will contribute data to planning to assist in the calculation of housing need for the County Borough. 

This is then used to allocate land for affordable and social housing within the PDP. 

 Housing and SP contribute to the Working Life SOAP and living well helping people live independently and 

reducing homelessness 

 The work in both Housing and SP contribute to a range of strategies including the Substance Misuse Area 

Plan, Housing Wales Act, and Rough Sleeper Plans. VAWDASV Regional Plan and national plans, Older Persons 

Strategy, SSWB Act, Future Generations Act and projects are commissioned in line and in collaboration with 

stakeholders that represent many of these areas 

 The Supporting People Programme commissions two separate projects which align with the VAWDASV Act 

(Wales) 2015, by providing  housing related support to victims of violence against women, domestic and 

sexual abuse and also sit on the Cwm Taf VAWDASV Steering group.   

 As co-ordinators for the Merthyr 50+ Forum, we also contribute to the Cwm Taf Wellbeing Plan, SSWB and 

WFG Act, by helping to reduce loneliness and isolation for older people and regularly work in partnership with 

the Older Persons Commissioner for Wales. 

Page 45



Page 24 of 40 
 

Leisure, Culture & 

Sports 

Development  

 Leisure, Culture and Sports Development has an input into three of the four themes contained within 

MTCBC’s Corporate Plan, Focus on the Future 

Rights of Way   Rights of Way has an input into the destination management plan  

 Contributes to the local development plan  

 Aware of the link to Corporate Priorities & Plan and the wider national strategies such as the Wellbeing and 

Future Generation (Wales) Act and Tackling Poverty Strategy (as examples). 

 Rights of Way Improvement plan  

 Open spaces strategy 

 Local Biodiversity Action Plan  

 

Joint outcomes with other services: 

Employability  Employability contributes to the joint outcomes linked to the SOAP ‘Working Life’ which, in turn, feeds in to 

the Corporate Plan (Focus on the Future) 

 Employability services will play a full part in the Council’s responsiveness to the Tackling Poverty agenda 

 Working closely with Social Services to develop a Pathway to Work – once established targets will be set to 

measure the success 

 Over the last few years Employability has been working closely with the Children Looked After team to 

support service users to access more joined up approach to learning, skills and employment.  To date this has 

had a positive effect and allow more service users who were not in education, employment or training to 

access and engage in learning or employment. 

Business Support & 

Inward Investment 

 We contribute to the Working Life theme within MTCBC’s Corporate Plan (Focus on the Future). 

 We have joint outcomes with the Estates team – from an Orbit management perspective and occupancy 

rates. 

 The team delivers Houses into Homes and Home Improvement Loans for which we work well with the 

Housing department to meet the needs of the community. 

 All grant applicants are signposted to the Employability team for advice on their recruitment and training 

needs. 

Environmental 

Health 

 Environmental Health has a symbiotic relationship with some other Council departments in order to deliver 

shared outcomes e.g. planning, licensing, Highways Engineers. 

 Environmental Health has a symbiotic relationship with some other Council departments in order to deliver 

shared outcomes e.g. planning, licensing, Highways Engineers. 

External Funding  Excellent relationship with Estates in terms of working together on potential Community Asset Transfers 

aligned to social businesses. 

 Promotion of the area linked to the objectives set out with Corporate Communications. 

 Tourism / social business developments which require some form of planning intervention. Had great work in 

terms of BikePark Wales, TBDT Units, The Roost (Troedyrhiw) etc. 

  

Strategic 

Regeneration 

 The team are working in partnership with the Design Commission for Wales (DCFW) on The Cyfarthfa Plan. 

MTCBC are the client team but the DCFW are our partner organisation and prepared the brief, supported the 

tender process and are now reviewing the key stages of the commission in conjunction with the Council.  

 The Business Improvement District (BID) is a key partner in delivering the Town Centre aims and objectives 

and all events are delivered in partnership.   This enables the team to engage with the Town Centre 

Businesses and users through delivering schemes and mitigating issues collaboratively.  

 The Town Centre Partnership is a collaboration between the Council and key external stakeholders that 

operate within or have an interest in the Town Centre.  The Partnership provides the opportunity for all 

members to provide updates and to look at current and future developments that will benefit the Town. 

  

PASS Services  Some of our most successful joint outcomes have been successfully issuing closure orders with the support of 

SWP, social landlords and Trading Standards. 

 With regards to the Town Centre Action Plan; Trading Standards contributes towards tackling businesses who 

operate outside the law and therefore protecting the local economy for legitimate business and consumers. 

  

Housing & 

Supporting People 

 Through the Housing Support Grant and Children and Communities Grants we have regular operational leads 

group meetings to ensure collaborative working to maximise outcomes for service users and also reduce 

duplication and break down barriers to effective support and signposting. 

 Housing work collaboratively with children’s services to establish the housing need for care experience young 

people and look to develop new housing options to ensure that this cohort is able to access appropriate 

accommodation with the relevant support. 

  

Page 46



Page 25 of 40 
 

 Housing work in partnership with Planning Services to draft ads publicise the local housing market assessment 

and the Gypsy Traveller Accommodation Assessment (GTAA). The GTAA work is also supported by the Gypsy 

Traveller Community Support Officer 

 Work with employability services to provide pre tenancy courses and signposting on to support people into 

training and employment to sustain and thrive. 

Leisure, Culture & 

Sports 

Development  

 Leisure, Culture and Sports Development has an input into three of the four themes contained within 

MTCBC’s Corporate Plan, Focus on the Future 

  

Rights of Way   Rights of way have the same outcome as Countryside and open spaces with keeping the trails and open 

spaces available for the public 

 Rights of way work with Active Merthyr on the facilitating of the stride and ride forum and the stride forum 

and the stride and ride festival. We both share the same outcome promotion of the trail and getting people 

active 

 Right of Way work extremely close with Engineers on the active travel projects and INM development   

  

 

Work with other Council Services 

Employability  The Employability Team works closely with a number of service areas across the Council; including Social 

Services; Education/Learning; Protection and Safety Services; Early Years and Childcare etc. 

Environmental 

Health 

 Environmental Health has a symbiotic relationship with some other Council departments in order to deliver 

shared outcomes e.g. planning, licensing, Highways Engineers.  Collaboration is widespread and is generally 

good both in terms of contributing to strategic partnership plans e.g. redevelopment of the new bus station, 

Trago Mills, and to deliver specific projects e.g.  Environmental Health, Highways Engineers and Corporate 

Communications to engage stakeholders, design and implement of the Air Quality Action Plan to deliver 

improved air quality in Twynyrodyn 

Business Support & 

Inward Investment 

 We work with other services across the Council including Employability; Economic Development; and the 

External Funding Team to deliver impact against the outcomes within MTCBC’s Corporate Plan. 

Strategic 

Regeneration 
 Strategic Regeneration has formed excellent working relationships with internal departments including Parks, 

Planning, Engineers and Estates to support project development and delivery.  These improved working 

relationships has resulted in collaboration particularly at the develop stage of projects where input from key 

departments is required.  

PASS Services  Collaborative working exists on a formal basis regarding work around Feed Standard Enforcement. There is a 

Memorandum of Understanding in Place with Rhondda Cynon Taf regarding this which forms part of the Food 

Standards Agency Regional Feed Delivery Strategy. 

 Licensing has joint outcomes with other services: 

 Rogue Trader Days – Trading Standards; 

 Responsible Authorities meetings – Trading Standards, Environmental Health and Planning; 

 MASH; 

 Event Safety Advisory Group – Environmental Health, Estates, Emergency Planning, Highways, 

Regeneration; 

 Joint visits with Trading Standards & Environmental Health 

 Trading Standards has an ongoing relationship with other council services such as Street Cleansing, Highways, 

Planning and Estates; especially in delivering shared outcomes such as car sales on the roadside and animal 

health and welfare concerns with stray animals.  Trading Standards has worked with Destination Management 

regarding the ‘Made In Merthyr’ Brand and also Waste and Recycling regarding the development of a council 

recycling shop. 

Housing & 

Supporting People 

 As part of our corporate parenting responsibilities housing is working collaboratively with children’s services 

to develop and deliver new housing projects to not only assist care leavers facing homelessness but all young 

people 16-24 at risk of homelessness in the borough. As part of our collaborative work with Children’s 

Services we also attend placement panel once a month where children at risk of homelessness when they 

transition out of care are discussed so that prevention work can start as early as possible.  

 Our Homelessness Outreach worker supports the community safety team in tackling anti-social behaviour in 

the town centre by ensuring that adequate wrap around support is available to minimise issues around drug 

litter and associated behaviours.  

 Work closely with Social Services to ensure the right accommodation meets the needs of those presenting at 

our services and recognition when care or further support outside of SP is required 

Page 47



Page 26 of 40 
 

 Work closely with Benefits and Housing Benefit ensuring people are set up to receive the correct benefits to 

enable them to survive and thrive  

 We are developing closer links with regen colleagues to plan for more housing, work collaboratively on grants 

to meet needs of both the town regeneration and housing, also working closely with Orbit colleagues on TRI 

grants and increasing supply of accommodation to meet our housing need. 

Leisure, Culture & 

Sports 

Development  

 The team works closely with a number of service areas across the Council; including Social Services; 

Education; Economic Development etc. 

Rights of Way  Rights of way have strong links with engineering department in relation to the delivery for the INM and the 

active travel programme, we facilitate an internal group monthly to keep track on the progress of works. 

There is also a strong link with the highways department win relation to maintenance etc. 

 There is a strong working link with Active Merthyr especially as we both facilitate the stride and ride forum, 

we also work with staff in promotion of the open spaces for recreational benefit.  

 Rights of way work closely with ESAG when there are events which have an impact on the trails network. 

 In the past ROW has worked closely with trading standards, particularly Animal health when there was an 

outbreak of foot and mouth, although this was a number of years ago this could happen again. 

 Rights of way have strong links with the estate department in relation to land issues.  

 Homelessness officer due to links with people sleeping rough on the trail, it would be good to have a 

formalised process for this 

 

Existing regional collaborations: 

Employability  Employability works in collaboration with Department of Work and Pensions to deliver on the Communities 

for Work/Plus Programme – this is happening on a national level within Communities for Work/Plus. 

 Bridges into Work 2, Working Skills for Adults 2 and Nurture Equip and Thrive has been designed to be 

delivered across 5 local authorities (Blaenau Gwent, Torfaen, Caerphilly, Bridgend and Merthyr Tydfil).  This 

approach has been well developed with Torfaen County Borough Council as the lead delivery body.  Welsh 

European Funding Office have been very pleased with our collaborative approach over the last 10 years. 

 Our Aspire Programme works with Blaenau Gwent County Borough Council and was rolled out in Merthyr 

Tydfil 2 ½ years ago.  In the summer of 2019 we negotiated access some opportunities with Rhondda Cynon 

Taf area to open up further engineering and manufacturing opportunities for residents either side of the local 

authority boarders.  Further discussions are underway to further develop this strand to a broader regional 

context and possible further sector development (Tourism). 

 Employability is heavily involved in the developments of the ‘Strong Economy’ theme within the CWM Taf 

Well Being Plan.  All actions within the plan collaborate with all Public Sector Services. 

 Careers Wales and the new establishment of with Working Wales initiative has been a key development 

within the Employability world in recent months.  Employability has forged a strong partnership link to ensure 

that teams are working together to maximise opportunities for local people to gain support.  This link is now 

well established and the collaboration is seeing the benefit of cross referrals and access to various funding 

sources to underpin delivery of employability programmes. 

 Communities for Work recently hosted a pan wales Employer Liaison Officer (ELO) meeting in Merthyr Tydfil.  

This networking event was a great success and due to this approach Welsh Government requested that these 

event takes place on a six monthly basis allowing ELO’s to come together to share successes and good 

practices to benefit Communities for Work/Plus programme and the participants who access it. 

Business Support & 

Inward Investment 

 The team delivers the Targeted Regeneration Investment Thematic Programme which is a regional 

programme delivered with all 10 authorities across the South East Wales region. 

 Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council is currently the only Local Authority in Wales that delivers the 

Meanwhile scheme and meetings have been held with other LA’s to share best practise as they will be looking 

to replicate the scheme.  Also part of South East Wales Competitiveness Network. 

Environmental 

Health 
 There is some collaboration taking place on a regional basis (e.g.) bid for funding and undertake coordinated 

sampling activity and maximise training opportunities. Membership of Welsh Food Microbiological Forum 

where LA’s and Public Health Wales jointly develop and deliver risk based food sampling programmes 

 Collaboration with RCT to deliver new empty property loans. 

 Work in partnership with Food Standards Agency, Public Health Wales, Business, Consumers, etc. by having a 

representative for Public Protection Wales on the Welsh Food Law Enforcement Liaison Committee to 

develop and co-produce food policy  
 Proposed delivery of training to practitioners of special procedures on a regional basis 

Page 48



Page 27 of 40 
 

External Funding 

Team 

 Excellent relationship with Tydfil Training via MTEC with some excellent success stories coming from the 

partnership (CAB, Penydarren Boys & Guys, Merthyr RFC etc.). 

 Formulated good pieces of work with RCTCBC aligned to tourism sector business assessments across Cwm Taf 

for the PSB. 

 Continue to support tourism related regional groups such as the Valley’s and Southern Wales. 

 Developed an excellent relationship with the Bevan Foundation aligned to work in Merthyr Tydfil.  

PASS Services  Community safety work collaboratively across the Cwm Taf region delivering on the community cohesion 

programme of work.  

 Trading Services works collaboratively on a formal basis regarding work around Feed Standard Enforcement. 

There is a Memorandum of Understanding in Place with Rhondda Cynon Taf regarding this which forms part 

of the Food Standards Agency Regional Feed Delivery Strategy. 

 Regional Collaboration exists between this service and the Wales Illegal Money Lending Unit (IMLU) and 

Regional Investigations Team (previously Scambusters). 

 Regional collaborations including joint working with RCT and Caerphilly licensing to carry out taxi operations; 

 Licensing Expert Panel 

Housing & 

Supporting People 
 Supporting People work collaboratively with a wide range of stakeholders to deliver key documents such as 

the SP Local Commissioning Plan and the Cwm Taf Ageing Well Plan 

 We regularly consult with all existing support providers when reviewing our commissioning plan to identify 

any unmet need and any changes to current trends 

 Annually we undertake a service user consultation to ensure we are considering the views of the people at the 

heart of the supporting people programme, who are best to advise on future commissioning by sharing their 

experiences and views on the services being delivered to them. 

 SP hold quarterly support provider forums to enable all organisations to share best practices and discuss any 

current issues 

 Regular meetings are held between all Cwm Taf SP monitoring teams to share best practice and look at areas 

for improvement by collaborative working 

 We work collaboratively with all Cwm Taf SP teams by meeting regularly to discuss regional working practices 

and how we may commission projects jointly.  In the past 12 months, we have commissioned two joint 

projects and have a third which has mirrored one already set up in RCT. 

 Housing and Supporting People form part of the Local Housing Panel which meet on a monthly basis to 

discuss specific housing & SP cases.  This panel has representation from various other partner organisations: 

4xRSL’s, COT team, Health, Probation Service, Adref and other support providers as and when required. 

 Housing and SP sit on the Housing First Steering Group which includes other agencies such as Salvation Army 

who lead on this project and provide the support to the individuals accessing this project, together with 

various other partner agencies. 

 Housing and SP Team Leaders attend monthly transition meetings with Children Services.  Our representation 

at these meetings allows all services to work together to ensure there is a continuity of support for young 

people moving into adulthood and ensures that we are able to identify and map future need for the young 

people making this transition in the next few years allowing us to forward plan and adapt our provision 

accordingly.  

 SP work regionally with other LA’s in the Cwm Taf Morgannwg Footprint- Bridgend and RCT and also work 

nationally in the SP Information Networks, to share best practise, discuss issues, lobbying Welsh Government 

and other partners and Housing and SP participate in the national Homelessness Networks run in partnership 

with Welsh Government, LA’s and WLGA. 

 Housing are working in partnership with other Local Authorities in the purchasing of a new computer system 

to administer the casework associated with their statutory homelessness duties. The system spec is also being 

worked through and developed collaboratively to cover all the needs of the nine local authorities involved in 

the project.  
 The Supporting People Programme commissions two separate projects which align with the VAWDASV Act 

(Wales) 2015, by providing  housing related support to victims of violence against women, domestic and 

sexual abuse and also sit on the Cwm Taf VAWDASV Steering group.   

 As co-ordinators for the Merthyr 50+ Forum, we also contribute to the Cwm Taf Wellbeing Plan, SSWB and 

WFG Act, by helping to reduce loneliness and isolation for older people and regularly work in partnership with 

the Older Persons Commissioner for Wales. 

Rights of Way  Rights of way officers are members of the WROMG group which is welsh rights of way officers management 

group and meets quarterly 

 Officers also sit on the active travel regional group which meets bi-monthly 

Page 49



Page 28 of 40 
 

 Officers sit on a regional management group for a south east wales project under the enabling natural 

resources grant  

 

 

Partnerships with private and third sector: 

Employability  Employability leads on the development of pre-employment courses with private companies that have an 

emerging recruitment need.    To date this has been very successful with many employers and continues to be 

a blue print to support recruitment & retention issues moving forward. 

 Communities for Work/Plus and the Community Enterprise team have developed a Community Engagement 

Plan outlining key stakeholder engagement, which includes a range of third sector organisations. 

 Aspire SAP has been leading on engaging with private engineering and manufacturing companies to promote 

Apprenticeship opportunities.  Welsh Government are funding the Aspire Programme to raise awareness and 

grow opportunities for local people to access apprenticeship opportunities.  Due to the success of the first 

two years of the pilot, Welsh Government have agreed to extend for a further two years.  Merthyr Tydfil 

College and TTC are involved from a learning pathway perspective via their Work Based Learning contracts. 

 Through working with Economic Development, key links have been established to promote employability 

within an inward investment context.  The Employability Services were realigned a few years ago to ensure 

that a direct link was established to offering support to employers.  To date connecting people most 

disadvantaged to real job opportunities has been a great success.  Employability is now involved in a and end 

to end process of support from the local authority for inward investment 

Business Support 

and Inward 

investment 

 Merthyr Tydfil Enterprise Centre opened in 2015 to provide support to new and existing businesses with in 

the borough, offering test trading office space and hot-desking. Our team works collaboratively with MTEC, 

The College Merthyr Tydfil, Business Wales and internal departments to deliver a successful enterprise 

programme through the Enterprise Board. 

Environmental 

Health 

 Work with third sector e.g. Hope Rescue for rehoming of stray dogs 

 

External Funding 

Team 

 Structured meetings with the tourism sector businesses via the DMP Partnership and Sub Groups. 

 LAG working well under the RDP Team with projects associated with the third sector being productive. 

 SuNSE continues to support all forms of social businesses with excellent success stories to date (listed above). 

 Assisted a number of social businesses (third sector’s) with obtaining large parcels of grant finance to evolve 

their businesses – some via the Ffos y Fran Grant. 

 Still unclear or have not had a formalised conversation with VAMT regarding a ‘tiered’ approach to working 

with the third sector. 

Strategic 

Regeneration 

 Through the programmes delivered partnerships are made with the third and private sectors.   For example, in 

the VVP programme the local authority were the grant recipient body and developed projects with the third 

sector organisations and developers to re-develop key buildings within the Town Centre.  This partnership 

delivery ensured that the Council achieved its objectives to support the regeneration of key buildings on 

privately owned properties, which succeeded in significant benefits and a positive impact in town and the 

surrounding areas.  

 On any projects delivered, collaboration is key with consultants and contractors.  The regular communication 

ensures that any risks and issues are identified and mitigated at an early stage and enables regular reporting 

to any funders and internally as required.  

 Support is provided to the businesses, users and other organisations within the Town Centre through the 

Town Centre operational component of the Strategic Regeneration Team.    
 Partnership working with the Merthyr Tydfil Leisure Trust to deliver successful projects within Cyfarthfa Park 

and Castle.  A recent example is the Valleys Regional Park application which secured funding for the re-

development of the Canolfan.  

 Partnership working with the Taff Bargoed Regeneration Partnership.  This has recently resulted in the 

commissioning of a new Taff Bargoed Strategy and Action Plan and this partnership will work together to 

develop projects which will regenerate the area over the next few years. 

PASS Services  Community safety is working in partnership with private and third sector continues to grow as we work with 

social landlords and support agencies for signposting.  

 Trading Standards works with a variety of third sector bodies such as animal welfare charities and also Citizens 

Advice Bureau, as well as organisations that deal with vulnerable individuals such as the Alzheimer’s Society 

Page 50



Page 29 of 40 
 

when clients have been referred to us; usually if they have fallen victim of doorstep crime. Advising new small 

businesses has occurred through our positive connection with Merthyr Tydfil Enterprise Centre.  

Housing & 

Supporting People 
 The housing outreach worker will work in partnership with substance misuse services to ensure that rough 

sleepers within the borough have the right level of appropriate support to manage their substance use 

 The housing team work with volunteer agencies to run and manage the annual winter night shelter. Without 

the assistance of the volunteers this provision would not be able to go forward.  

 Even though our usual contact with shelter is from them challenging a decision made on a homeless case this 

will feed into the continual improvement programme currently being undertaken by housing in respect to the 

housing casework. This external scrutiny in invaluable as it acts as a fresh viewpoint on a process that we think 

is working well but is actually detrimental to the service user and as such we need to tweak our processes.  

 SP commission many 3rd sector orgs and rely on more to provide holistic support to those with housing 

related support needs. Examples include: Platfform who deliver support to people suffering with mental 

health; Llamau and BAWSO for those affected by domestic abuse; DRIVE for those with learning or physical 

disabilities; Pobl for substance misuse issues; Adref deliver support to those with criminal offending history; 

Hafod for older persons, Hafal for adult mediation, along with providers Adref, MVH, MTHA, CAB who provide 

generic floating support.  We have also recently commissioned a Resilience Project with Merthyr and the 

Valleys MIND and also commissioned a regional dementia project with RCT. This is not an exhaustive list. 

 Housing have partnered with a private developer (D2PropCo) to increase supply of single persons 

accommodation for use in lieu of B&B to create better outcomes for people at less cost to the LA 

Leisure, Culture & 

Sports 

Development 

 The team is involved with large-scale projects including activities such as National Play Day 

 

Evidence of partnership/collaborative working across the County Borough: 

Employability  The Employability Team works with wider organisations across the County Borough on an ad-hoc basis as 

needs arise (e.g.) working with the Business Support and Inward Investment team to provide support to 

entrepreneurs supporting them to develop the skills to manage their new business enterprise; or work with 

Careers Wales and the new establishment of with Working Wales initiative.  Employability has forged a strong 

connection here to ensure that teams are working together to maximise opportunities for local people to gain 

support.  This connection is now well established and the collaboration is seeing the benefit of cross referrals 

and access to various funding sources to underpin delivery of employability programmes 

Business Support & 

Inward Investment 

 Joint events with Job Centre Plus 

 Working in partnership with external partners such as neighbouring local authorities, Tydfil Training, Merthyr 

Tydfil Enterprise Centre and Business Wales to deliver an holistic approach to maximise the collective skills of 

the different agencies for business support.  Through the Enterprise Board and the MTEC, business referrals 

are tracked to our partner agencies to provide the relevant support for businesses 

Environmental 

Health 

 Work closely with other LA’s in Wales to produce common policies and procedures through participation 

Public Protection Wales Expert Panels covering Food Safety, Health and Safety, Housing, Communicable 

Disease and Pollution Control 

 Proposed delivery of training to practitioners of special procedures on a regional basis 

 Working with British Gas through an SLA to assist in the implementation of the NEST scheme 

 Partnership working and Memorandum of Understanding with Rent Smart Wales to ensure landlords and 

letting agents are registered and licenced. 

Strategic 

Regeneration 

 Support is provided to the businesses, users and other organisations within the Town Centre through the 

Town Centre operational component of the Strategic Regeneration Team.    

 Partnership working with the Merthyr Tydfil Leisure Trust to deliver successful projects within Cyfarthfa Park 

and Castle.  A recent example is the Valleys Regional Park application which secured funding for the re-

development of the Canolfan.  

 Partnership working with the Taff Bargoed Regeneration Partnership.  This has recently resulted in the 

commissioning of a new Taff Bargoed Strategy and Action Plan and this partnership will work together to 

develop projects which will regenerate the area over the next few years.  

Housing & 

Supporting People 

On reflection, capacity and internal restructure of roles and responsibilities and exponential increases in demand 

on both SP and Housing Services has been a barrier for our services this has limited the engagement with other 

Page 51



Page 30 of 40 
 

support services.  However, the key observations we would make about our work with corporate support services 

is as follows: 

 As part of its strategic function the Housing Department manages a strategic housing partnership. This 

partnership includes: adult social services, children’s services, our four partner registered social landlords, 

supporting people, housing solutions team and the deputy chief executive. The aim of these partnership 

meetings is to highlight housing issues that are impacting members and how we can work collaboratively to 

tackle these issues.  The biggest issue currently is a significant increase in homeless presentations form mainly 

single person households and a significant reduction in the availability of one bed general need properties. 

The partnership is now looking at ways that this can be tackled to improve housing outcomes for single people 

who become homeless. This is not going to be a quick fix as currently we are only housing 7% of our general 

one bed housing need annually.  

 As part of our need for a more appropriate hostel setting for our housing people we have asked our four 

partner registered social landlord to register expressions of interest to purchase a property and convert it to 

provide six spaces of supported accommodation to replace some of the bed spaces within the existing hostel 

provision. They have also been asked to identify another property to provide the four bed spaces. This is being 

funded through the social housing grant and we are also working with the grants team to see if other funding 

sources can be used as part of this project. 

 Housing Solutions are seeing a significant increase in the cost of B&B provision. In order to reduce this cost, 

we are working with a private company to provide a house of multiple occupation (HMO). The current HMO 

provides four spaces as an alternative to B&B which has reduced our overall costs of B&B. The company are 

now looking into providing another HMO which will provide an additional four spaces. As part of our duty to 

provide interim accommodation to vulnerable households we also partner with Calon Leasing to provide 

eleven private leasing properties. These are temporary accommodation properties with floating support and 

provide another valuable option of interim accommodation.  In addition, there are two properties in this 

scheme that have been fully adapted by MVH to provide temporary accommodation when someone is ready 

to be discharged from hospital but need to have their current property adapted or move to an adapted 

property.  

Leisure, Culture & 

Sports 

Development 

 The team makes a substantial contribution to a number of events such as National Play Day; the Outdoor 

Spaces project; Food and Fed. 

 Through its social media presence; the teams promote wider County Boroughwide activities such as Stride & 

Ride; activities delivered by partner organisations. 

Rights of Way  Rights of way facilitate the trails development group which as well as internal departments there are many 

external agencies who are members such as Welsh Water, South Wales Police, South Wales Fire and rescue, 

Ramblers association, activity businesses such as BikePark Wales, this is a very successful group which has 

been running in excess of 5 years 

 Rights of Way also facilitate the local access forum which is a mix of landowners and users and is a statutory 

requirement under the countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000 

 

Evidence of partnership with other public agencies: 

Employability  The European-funded employability services are run across a number of local authorities so opportunities to 

learn and share good practice with colleagues within these Councils can lead to developed practice. 

 A strong partnership is in place with Cwm Taf Morgannwg with the Employability Services providing an 

conduit for pre-employment training. 

Business Support & 

Inward Investment 

 Working in partnership with external partners including neighbouring local authorities to deliver an holistic 

approach to maximise the collective skills of the different agencies for business support.   

External Funding 

Team 
 Ability to share best practice and methodologies with transnational partners surrounding social enterprise 

and trail developments (via SuNSE & Trail Gazers). 

 Great relationship with Welsh Government (Visit Wales) aligned to our destination management priorities and 

the new, draft Visit Wales Action Plan. 

 Undertaken a diagnostic exercise in partnership with RCTCBC for the Cwm Taf PSB. 

Strategic 

Regeneration 

 Strategic Regeneration has formed excellent working relationships with internal departments including Parks, 

Planning, Engineers and Estates to support project development and delivery.  These improved working 

relationships has resulted in collaboration particularly at the develop stage of projects where input from key 

departments is required.  

Page 52



Page 31 of 40 
 

 Collaborative working with Welsh Government Departments is extremely important and a key objective of the 

team.  A recent example is working in partnership with Welsh Government to create a new Town Centre 

Masterplan that will have a significant impact on the future development of the Town Centre.  The 

commission involved the Regeneration, Transport and Valleys Taskforce Teams.  This commission has also 

created a baseline to work in partnership with these teams moving forward for implementation of key 

projects identified through the plan. 

PASS Services  Additional partnerships participated in by Community Safety include strong working relationships with South 

Wales Police. Working together on a daily basis to we jointly utilise the tools and powers from the ASB, Police 

and Crime Act 2014. 

 Further Collaborative working exists regarding the use of a Metrological Laboratory in order to maintain the 

standards of our Weighing and measuring equipment. The collaborative agreement has been in place since 

2001. 

 Partnerships with public agencies such as South Wales police, HMRC, Boarder Force are in existence. 

 On a national level the Trading Standards Service works alongside National Trading Standards (NTS) in work 

around doorstep crime. 

 Licensing work with South Wales Police Licensing; the Street Pastors; South Wales Police – Traffic and the 

Immigration Service. 

Housing  It is a statutory requirement of the Housing Act 1996 that the Local Authority manage the housing waiting list. 

We can only do this effectively by working in partnership with our four largest RSL’s.  Aelwyd has opted out of 

this.  This is not without its challenges as even though strategically the RSL’s understand our rising demand 

and need to work together to maximise move on from our temporary accommodation it is not always 

reflected in the day-to-day operations of the RSL’s.  

 As a strategic housing department, we administer the proposed development plan on behalf of Welsh 

Government. This will allocate grant monies to our partner RSLs to enable them to develop properties that 

meet or establish social housing need. This is undertaken in partnership and is a vital partnership to ensure we 

can continue to meet the housing need of the County Borough.  

Rights of Way  As a result of the trails development group we have developed a positive relationship with agencies like south 

wales police outside of the group and this has benefited both parties. 

 

 

 

 

EMPLOYABILITY: 
 Employability being aligned to Economic Development 

 Development of Community Engagement plans to provide a planned approach to engaging with partners 

 Responding to actual recruitment need of employers within Merthyr Tydfil to create opportunities for local people accessing our 

Employability Services through the design of pre-employment courses. 

 Using PSB directive to drive new approaches within the local authority and across the region. 

 Connecting local provision within the Aspire Programme to design and delivery learning pathways for the Aspire Programme. 

 Working with the Operational Leads group; the maximisation of the available tackling poverty budgets was achieved over the past 12-

months.  During this financial year; the Employability Manager co-ordinated a network event for all services which were delivering 

projects linked to Tackling Poverty to offer an opportunity to develop a better understanding as to how this all fits together.  This event 

was well attended and the feedback received shows that the event was valued by attendees who requested for similar events to be held 

on a regular basis. 

BUSINESS SUPPORT & INWARD INVESTMENT: 
 Collaboration – working with internal departments and external agencies to deliver a range of programmes to maximise the Wellbeing 

Outcomes for the community. Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council is currently the only Local Authority in Wales that delivers the 

Meanwhile scheme and meetings have been held with other LA’s to share best practise as they will be looking to replicate the scheme.  

Also part of South East Wales Competitiveness Network. 

 Integration - working in partnership with external partners such as neighbouring local authorities, Tydfil Training, Merthyr Tydfil 

Enterprise Centre and Business Wales to deliver an holistic approach to maximise the collective skills of the different agencies for 

business support.  Through the Enterprise Board and the MTEC, business referrals are tracked to our partner agencies to provide the 

relevant support for businesses. 

 Involvement – Maintaining and improving the services we provide by using feedback from service users to better understand their 

needs.  By doing this the Orbit Business Centre maintains 100% occupancy and a high booking demand for training/meeting facilities. 

Good Practice: 

Page 53



Page 32 of 40 
 

 Long-term – We are currently looking into developing future programmes to ensure that there we can maintain a high level of business 

support and continue to be the number 1 in Wales for business start-ups. 

 Prevention – prevention of business deaths with early interaction with a struggling business bring in expertise from other agencies to 

initiate survival and development actions.  This links with the Wellbeing Objective allowing business and infrastructure to flourish. 

ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH: 
 Development of a list of private sector landlords operating within Merthyr Tydfil which has been shared with Rent Smart Wales to 

ensure that they are register and licenced as necessary. 

 Bi annual survey of empty property owners using data shared by Council Tax. The survey enables targeted advice to be given and to 

identify barriers to bringing properties back into use. 

EXTERNAL FUNDING TEAM: 

Contribution to existing strategic partnership plans 

 The External Funding Team are heavily involved in the development of key strategies including the over-arching Economic Growth 

Strategy as well as others. 

 Experienced Programme Manager who can write such strategies as a new Destination Management Plan or Social Enterprise 

Strategy rather than pay consultants tens of thousands of pounds instead. 

Joint outcomes with other services 

 Utilise Corporate Communications (Jackie Huybs) to write content for our new Visit Merthyr Guide and online platforms. 

 Utilise the Social Media Officer to develop video content rather than using external businesses who are far more costly. 

Additionally, it helps to finance the Officer’s role too. 

 Excellent relationship with Estates in terms of working together on potential Community Asset Transfers aligned to social 

businesses. 

Existing regional collaborations 

 Excellent relationship with Tydfil Training via MTEC with some excellent success stories coming from the partnership (CAB, 

Penydarren B&G, Merthyr RFC etc.). 

 Formulated good pieces of work with RCTCBC aligned to tourism sector business assessments across Cwm Taf for the PSB. 

Partnership with the private or third sectors 

 Structured meetings with the tourism sector businesses via the DMP Partnership and Sub Groups. 

 LAG working well under the RDP Team with projects associated with the third sector being productive. 

 SuNSE continues to support all forms of social businesses with excellent success stories to date (listed above). 

 Assisted a number of social businesses (third sector’s) with obtaining large parcels of grant finance to evolve their businesses – 

some via the Ffos y Fran Grant. 

Partnership with public agencies 

 Ability to share best practice and methodologies with transnational partners surrounding social enterprise and trail developments 

(via SuNSE & Trail Gazers). Only LA in Wales that currently participates on any Interreg or Atlantic Area transnational project. 

 Undertaken a diagnostic exercise in partnership with RCTCBC for the Cwm Taf PSB. 

STRATEGIC REGENERATION: 

 Working with the DCFW to appoint world renowned consultants to develop the Cyfarthfa Plan  

 Working with Welsh Government and consultants to develop a new Town Centre Masterplan  

 The delivery of successful events such as the Chilli Fest, Food Festival and Christmas Light Switch on through partnership working 

with the BID.  

 Working in partnership with Merthyr Tydfil Leisure Trust to successfully secure £700k for the re-development of the Canolfan 

 Collaborative working with the Taf Bargoed Partnership resulted in the successful creation of the Taf Bargoed Strategy and Action 

Plan 

 Successful re-development of St. John’s church through partnership working with a private sector developer.  

 Issues with parking at Lower High Street resolved through close working with Parking and local businesses.  A successful outcome 

which has resulted in a reduction of complaints within the Town Centre.  

PASS SERVICES: 

Community Services 

 Community safety has been engaging in a variety of good practice when it comes to more creative ways of partnership working. 

Over the last year we have been working closely with Trading standards to address problems with off-licences who are contributing 

to levels of ASB and crime in the vicinity. 

Page 54



Page 33 of 40 
 

 In addition to carrying out day to day tasks the team are frequently exploring new and creative ways to work. This includes the role 

out of “People on patrol” platform which will improve how we communicate with member of the community. It will also give us 

more capability to provide important information to the appropriate audiences via a filter.  

Trading Standards 

 The development of the trading standards work programme for the year is based on intelligence that has been previously received 

and the threats and emerging issues which can be found in the WHOTS Strategic Assessment document. Therefore work is targeted 

to specific areas which we know are priorities for the local community. This benefits a team where resources are small and has 

changed the way we have previously worked which was based on individual services requests and inspection. 

 By utilising our internal partners such as Community Safety and licensing it has led to a joint working approach in some areas of our 

work, especially illicit tobacco, private members club change in license and CCTV 

 Using external public bodies such as HMRC and SWP to assist in warrants of entry has been beneficial and has led to searches 

becoming faster and more efficient. These partners are essential when the trading standards team is small in number. 

Licensing 

 It is an embedded culture to work hand in hand with South Wales Police Licensing to carry out our day-to-day job.  Our excellent 

working relationship is invaluable to how the department runs; and the work we are able to carry out. 

 Responsible Authority meetings have recently been set up so that all partners involved with licensed premises meet on a regular 

basis to discuss any application / issues / queries / projects.  This has been well-received by all attendees who find it beneficial.  

 Licensing are a key member of ESAG and contribute heavily both during pre-planning of events and during the events themselves. 

HOUSING & SUPPORTING PEOPLE: 
 St Tydfil’s hospital is a priority regeneration area. Working collaboratively with regeneration and the developer we have identified a 

partner housing association to provide a significant number of social housing properties in an area of high housing demand. The 

development of these will be funded by the social housing grant. Regeneration are also looking at grant availability to renovate the 

listed entrance way to the site.  

 Working collaboratively with children’s services and a partner registered social landlord we have developed our first housing first 

for youth project. This project is aimed at young people 16-24 with or without an experience of care whose support needs are too 

high for our existing provisions for this age group. The service will provide four spaces and an emergency bed space to reduce the 

use of B&B for this group.  

 Attendance at transition panel 

 Provision of HMO’s to reduce the use and cost of B&B 

 Regionally commissioned project to support those living with Dementia with housing-related needs and just in the process of 

regionally commissioning our hostel provision across Merthyr and RCT. 

 Evidence of sharing best practise and partnership working through joint officer monitoring across SP on regional projects. 

 Joint purchase and development of a new homelessness case management system 

 Collaborative and integrated approach to commissioning , planning and delivering services between both SP and Housing as well as 

Social Services and Children’s Services to work to broadening the range and supply of accommodation to meet local needs 

LEISURE, CULTURE & SPORTS DEVELOPMENT: 
 Regional working across Cwm Taf Morgannwg area 

 Sport Wales collaboration 

 Education and schools relationships and work outcomes (e.g.) Education Business Improvement Plan 

 Central South Cluster work 

 LDP links in relation to facilities project 

RIGHTS OF WAY: 

 Trails development group which is users land-owners and also activity tourism providers; 

 Working collaboratively with South East Wales authorities for Cross-Wales Bridleway Project. 
 

 

 
Employability 

 Relationship agreements for Bridges in Work 2, Working Skills for Adults 2 and Nurture Equip & Thrive 

 Community Engagement Plan with impacts recorded 

 Morgan Sindall Social Value Plan. 

 PSB, Cwm Taf Well Being Plan – ‘Strong Economy’ theme 

 SOAP – depicting directorate targets that contribute to ‘Working Life’ 

 DRAFT ‘Pathway to Work’ document 

 ASPIRE funding application 

Evidence: 

Page 55



Page 34 of 40 
 

 Feedback report linked to the Tackling Poverty network event 

Business Support: 

 Case studies 

 Service Level Agreement Outcomes 

 Minutes from Competitiveness Network Meetings 

 Working Life SOAP 

 Focus on the Future 

Environmental Health: 

 Minutes of Expert Panel meetings 

 Minutes of WFLELC meetings 

 Local Development Plan 

 Toilet Strategy 

 Air Quality Action Plan 

 Minutes of Council and Scrutiny meetings 

 Glamorgan Group food standards sampling programme and WFMF microbiological food sampling programme. 

 Food Law Delivery Plan 

 PAM’s 

 SOAPS 

 Self-Evaluation Documents 

External Funding Team 

 Annual Performance Report 2018-19 

 Self-Evaluation Documents (Question 1) 

 SOAP 

 Scrutiny & Cabinet Reports (Destination Management, x2 transnational projects, SMS Project etc.) 

 2019 Destination Day PowerPoint Presentation  

 Transnational funding applications 

 Large scale grant funding application (aligned to third sector) 

 Visit Merthyr Guide and Website 

Strategic Regeneration 

 Reduction in complaints  

 Appointment of Ian Ritchie and TFW, Urbanists and Motts  

 Taff Bargoed Strategy 

 Funding secured  

 Events delivered 

 Vacant buildings being brought back into use 

PASS Services 

Community Safety 

 ASB cases 

 SWP referrals  

 PSG (Problem Solving group) actions and outcomes.   

 Successful court action (closure orders)  

Trading Standards 

 Tasking 

 Prevention, Intelligence and Enforcement Charts 

 Cases 

 Prosecutions 

 Social Media 

Licensing 

 Responsible Authority meetings 

 ESAG meetings 

Housing & Supporting People 

 Six monthly housing need calculations 

 Who12 returns on homelessness 

 Departmental budget 

Page 56



Page 35 of 40 
 

 The proposed development plan 

 The number of urgent management transfers undertaken without consultation. 

 SP outcomes data 

 Working Life SOAP 

 Performance data from Civica 

 Service user questionnaires (SP) 

 Support Provider annual reviews and 3 yearly Strategic Reviews (SP) 

Leisure, Culture & Sports Development 

 Educational Business Improvement Plan 

 Best Start SOAP 

 Working Life SOAP 

 Living Well SOAP 

 Sport Wales Annual Report 

 Collaborative bid work in relation to Cwm Taf Morgannwg area 

 Healthy and Active fund collaborative bid 

 Central South Cluster expressions of interest forms 

 

 

In light of the evidence given above, identify areas that the service would like to develop in order to do better. 

Business Support & Inward Investment: 

 Greater synergy between internal departments – planning, estates, housing, environmental health.  Great steps have been taken 

towards achieving this but more work needs to be carried out to form stronger links to meet common aims and objectives. 

 Stronger links to regional programmes and integration with counter parts within the other Local Authority areas 

 Memorandum of Understanding for enterprise group outlining roles and responsibilities of the members. 

Environmental Health: 

 Possible development of Primary Authority 

External Funding Team 

Joint Outcomes with other services 

 Collectively we probably need better alignment with other services priorities – but we need to be aware of what those core 

priorities are first. A prime example of this was linked to the SMS Project in Taff Bargoed and works associated with the lake 

planned by the Planning Department. 

 More focussed approach of potentially designing services around a collaborative approach between services. As an example 

advertising of potential Community Asset Transfers between ourselves and Estates. 

Partnership with the private or third sectors 

 Need definitive roles between ourselves and VAMT aligned to third sector support. 

 Potentially do with an evolving compendium (potentially online) of the support agencies sat within the fabric of Merthyr Tydfil and 

the services they provide (similar to a business directory). Sharing of resources is becoming more appropriate than ever. 

Partnership with public agencies 

 Potentially do with an evolving compendium (potentially online) of the support public agencies sat within the fabric of Merthyr 

Tydfil and the services they provide (similar to a business directory). Sharing of resources is becoming more appropriate than ever. 

Strategic Regeneration 

 There is a need to provide further targeted support within the Town Centre to ensure all businesses and organisations feel 

supported and engaged with  

 Look for further opportunities to engage with the private and third sector to support project / programme delivery  

 Review Partnerships and their terms of reference to ensure that they are fit for purpose to accommodate the change in 

programmes, particularly the Town Centre Partnership  

PASS Services 

 Community safety are losing the use of a case management database by January 2020. We have been working closely with South 

Wales Police as a priority area for development. The way in which case are managed and referred will completely changed and will 

required developing the way in which we work and handle case management. 

Areas for Development: 

Page 57



Page 36 of 40 
 

 Trading Standards officers suggest that, in order to improve our links around vulnerable people and assisting them around the 

prevention of doorstep crime or if there have been victims of such an incident; it would be beneficial to have links with our 

colleagues in Social Services, which do not currently exist. 

 Trading Standards seeks to increase collaboration with non-traditional partners (e.g.) Street Cleansing Team 

Housing & Supporting People 

 There is still a need to develop one bed general need properties at pace. This can only be achieved with strengthening: 

 Better collaborative working with internal services – Children Services to plan for future need.  Whilst we have seen significant 

improvement in this area in the past 12 -18 months, we need to improve further to ensure we can accurately map future need and 

plan our provision accordingly, making best used of our limited resources. 

 Work more closely with Support Providers to identify any gaps in support services to ensure we are commissioning the right 

projects and getting best value for money.   

Leisure, Culture & Sports Development  

 Links with Health Board clusters 

 Links with education and schools (further develop) 

 Links with Social Services 

 

 

These are the priority areas that need immediate improvement in order to have an impact on outcomes.  Consider 

the judgements - this should be about moving from unsatisfactory to adequate, or from adequate to good.  

Business Support & Inward Investment: 

 Memorandum of Understanding for enterprise group outlining roles and responsibilities of the members. 

Environmental Health: 

 Engage with neighbouring local authorities to ascertain whether sustainability of service provision can be achieved through collaborative 

activity. 

External Funding Team 

Joint outcomes with other services 

 Collectively we probably need better alignment with other services priorities – but we need to be aware of what those core 

priorities are first. A prime example of this was linked to the SMS Project in Taff Bargoed and works associated with the lake 

planned by the Planning Department. 

 More focussed approach of potentially designing services around a collaborative approach between services. As an example 

advertising of potential Community Asset Transfers between ourselves and Estates. 

Partnership with the private or third sectors 

 Need definitive roles between ourselves and VAMT aligned to third sector support 

Strategic Regeneration 

 There is a need to provide further targeted support within the Town Centre to ensure all businesses and organisations feel 

supported and engaged with  

 Look for further opportunities to engage with the private and third sector to support project / programme delivery  

 Review Partnerships and their terms of reference to ensure that they are fit for purpose to accommodate the change in 

programmes, particularly the Town Centre Partnership  

PASS Services 

 Communication with public is a key area for development for the Community Safety team, this is being addressed partly by “People 

on Patrol” platform. Work will continue to develop to ensure the public community safety priorities and concerns are captured and 

news and information reaches the right people. 

 Creating links within Social Services would improve Trading Standards service delivery with regards to door step crime and 

consumer fraud prevention. Educating and assisting those who visit vulnerable individuals by showing them the tell-tale signs of 

this type of criminal activity could lead to better future prevention. 

Housing & Supporting People 

 Health are often a missing partner especially where we are looking to develop or sustain supported housing projects. Without their 

involvement it is becoming increasingly difficult to provide the right level of appropriate support due to the increasing complex 

needs of our applicants/prospective tenants especially around mental health and substance use.  

Priorities for Improvement:  

Page 58



Page 37 of 40 
 

 Raising awareness with RSL operational staff of the issues we are having with moving people on from our interim accommodation 

and working more closely with allocations teams to prioritise the moving of applicants out of interim accommodation to free up 

spaces in interim accommodation and manage the 42% rise in homeless presentations. 

Leisure, Culture & Sports Development  

 Link current working practices more closely with Future Generations Act and Ways of working, ensuring all staff understand and 

work towards those links 

 Align work more closely with the new Physical Activity Strategy and Sport Wales Strategy 

 Develop new ways of showcasing the outcomes of the work already undertaken to allow better understanding across departments 

of the work done and the positive impacts on lives within the county borough as a result of that work. 

 

 

Page 59



Page 38 of 40 
 

QUESTION 2:  PROVISION & SERVICE DELIVERY 

 

Question 2.3:  How well does the service understand and use sustainable development (the five ways of working)? 

 

NB:  Only complete the objective relevant to your area- leave the Corporate AREAS BLANK 

Ensure that you place a score in each of the 5 boxes: 0 = no evidence; 0.5=some evidence but much to do; 1.0=good evidence but with development needs; 1.5 good 

evidence and embedded practice; 2.0 evidence of being an exemplar for others in this regard. See the Guidance document for a descriptor for each score. 

 Objectives and Corporate Areas of Change 

 

W
ay

s 
o

f 
W

o
rk

in
g 

 

Best Start to 

Life  
Working Life 

Environmental 

Wellbeing 
Living Well 

Collated holistic judgement 

identified for the service 

areas 

Long term  

Employability – 1 

Business Support – 0.5  

Environmental Health – 1.5 

External Funding – 1.5 

Strategic Regeneration – 1 

PASS Services – 1.5 

Housing & Support People – 1 

Leisure, Culture & Sports Development – 1.5 

Rights of Way - 1 

  1.5 

Prevention  

Employability – 1.5 

Business Support – 0.5 

Environmental Health – 1.5 

External Funding – 1.0 

Strategic Regeneration – 1 

PASS Services – 1.5 

Housing & Support People – 1 

Leisure, Culture & Sports Development – 1 

Rights of Way - 1 

  1.5 

 

 

P
age 60



Page 39 of 40 
 

 

Best Start to Life  Working Life 
Environmental 

Wellbeing 
Living Well 

Collated holistic judgement 

identified for the service 

areas 

 

Involvement  

Employability – 1.5 

Business Support – 0.5 

Environmental Health – 1.5 

External Funding – 1.5 

Strategic Regeneration – 1 

PASS Services – 1.5 

Housing & Support People – 1 

Leisure, Culture & Sports Development – 1 

Rights of Way - 1 

  1.5 

Collaboration  

Employability – 2 

Business Support – 1 

Environmental Health – 1.0 

External Funding – 1.5 

Strategic Regeneration – 1.5 

PASS Services – 1.5 

Housing & Support People – 1.5 

Leisure, Culture & Sports Development – 1 

Rights of Way – 1 

  1.5 

Integration  

Employability – 1 

Business Support – 1 

Environmental Health – 1.5 

External Funding – 1.5 

Strategic Regeneration – 1 

PASS Services – 1.5 

Housing & Support People – 1 

Leisure, Culture & Sports Development – 1 

Rights of Way - 1 

  1.5 

P
age 61



Page 40 of 40 
 

 

JUDGEMENT:   

Once you have assigned a score for each of the 5 ways of working RELEVANT to the wellbeing objective that the 

service is accountable for, use the performance key below to provide a judgement.  For example, Long Term is 

scored 1.5 in the matrix the judgement is GOOD. 

The aggregated scores across the responding service areas are listed below: 

Ways of working  Judgement 

Long term 1.5 

Prevention 1.5 

Involvement 1.5 

Collaboration 1.5 

Integration 1.5 

 

The holistic judgement reached in relation to the use of the five ways of working was Good. 

 

SCORE JUDGEMENT  

2 EXCELLENT  

1.5 GOOD 

1 ADEQUATE and needs improvement  

0-0.5 UNSATISFACTORY and needs urgent improvement  

 

 

 

 

Page 62



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 
 

SCRUTINY REPORT 
 

 

 

 

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 

Work Programme 2019/20  
 
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 

1.1 To provide the Scrutiny Committee with its work programme for consideration and to 
prepare in advance of the next scrutiny committee meeting. 

 
1.2 To remind Scrutiny Committee members that they need to consider the requirements 

of the Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 in all aspects of scrutiny 
work. 

 
2.0 RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 

2.1 The Committee considers the attached Work Programme and approves, revises or 
amends it as deemed appropriate; and to consider the questions at 3.7 in planning 
for the next meeting.  

 
 

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 

3.1 The attached work programme identifies the topics and issues under consideration 
by the Scrutiny Committee and allows an opportunity for additional subjects to be 
identified and included on the programme. 

 
3.2 Scrutiny committees are required to prepare and keep under review a programme for 

their future work. By reviewing and prioritising issues, members are able to ensure 
that the work programme delivers a member-led agenda.  

 
3.3 The Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 requires each Public Service 

Board (PSB) and Council to work with their communities to develop local objectives. 
Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council (MTCBC) and the Cwm Taf PSB have acted 
on this. 

Date Written 2nd January 2020 

Report Author Scrutiny Section 

Committee Division Scrutiny  

Exempt/Non Exempt Non Exempt 

Committee Date 14th January 2020 

Page 63

Agenda Item 5



 
3.4 MTCBC has four local Wellbeing Objectives, each having clear outcomes that will 

help the Council to respond to local community needs and contribute to the seven 
national wellbeing goals. The four Wellbeing Objectives are:- 

 
 

BS Best Start to Life - Children and young people get the best start to life and are 
equipped with the skills they need to be successful learners and confident 
individuals.  
 
The key outcomes for Best Start to Life are: 
 

 Children live in a nurturing and stimulating home environment  

 Children have access to high quality pre-school and school education  

 Improve the educational outcomes for all children and young people  

 Children and young people have good health and wellbeing 
 
 

WL Working Life - People feel supported to develop the skills required to meet the 
needs of businesses, with a developing, safe infrastructure which makes Merthyr 
Tydfil as an attractive destination.  
 
The key outcomes for Working Life are:  
 

 Merthyr Tydfil realises its full economic potential, with a skilled workforce and 
better employment opportunities; 

 People value and enjoy the built and natural environment, protecting and 
enhancing our cultural assets for current and future generations;  

 We have strong, resilient and supportive communities where people take 
responsibility for their own actions and how they affect others.  

 
 

EW Environmental Wellbeing - Communities protect, enhance and promote our 
environment and countryside.  
 
 The key outcomes for Environmental Wellbeing are:  
 

 Environmental damage is minimised by preventing pollution 

 To maximise the amount of materials and resources recycled in line with the 
waste hierarchy; 

 Merthyr Tydfil has good quality, biodiverse and connected green infrastructure 
and open spaces; and 

 The use of renewable and low carbon energy is increased.  
 

LW Living Well - People are empowered to live independently within their 
communities, where they are safe and enjoy good physical and mental health.  
 
The key outcomes for Living Well are: 
 

 People live safe and independent lives within their communities 

 Children and adults are safeguarded from harm and feel safe 

 Children and young people live safely with their family or close to home and 
have transitioned well into adulthood. 

 

 

Page 64



3.5 The Scrutiny Committee is encouraged to identify issues that reflect these priorities 
that are within your remit and/or are a priority for local people and communities. If a 
matter is a recurring issue for the people you, as Councillors, represent, the 
likelihood is that it is something that the Committee should consider. The more 
relevant the issue is to local communities then the greater the likelihood of engaging 
those communities in the scrutiny process and of producing outcomes that will be 
visible to those communities you represent. 

 
3.6 MTCBC has developed an ‘Our Shared Vision’ document (Appendix I). This makes 

the connections from the seven national Wellbeing Goals through to the local 
objectives and political priorities. This document is contained within one page and 
acts as an easy to understand guide. When considered with service area strategies 
and operational plans a thread is created that can be extended down to individual 
tasks. This helps staff members see how they are contributing to the Act and the 
‘Wales We Want’, and will assist Scrutiny members better understand the 
connections with the Act. 

 
3.7 The work programme is a dynamic document and is reviewed at every meeting of 

the Committee to ensure that its contents are still relevant and will add value to what 
the Council and partners are doing. At each meeting the committee will agree the 
agenda items for their next meeting and in preparation may in advance wish to ask 
itself the following questions. 
 

Q) Why has the item been placed on a Scrutiny Work Programme? 

a. Does this item/topic contribute to the delivery of the Council’s wellbeing 
objectives and priorities? 

b. Is this item/topic relating to service performance concerns? 
c. Is this item/topic of significant public interest? 
d. Has the item/topic got budgetary implications? 
e. Is this a item/topic where Scrutiny involvement will make a significant 

difference and achieve tangible outcomes? 
f. Can effective Scrutiny of this issue be delivered from within available 

resources? 
 
Q) What is the specific role of the Committee? 

            This will depend on the item – for example the role could be: 
a. to determine if performance levels are acceptable in relation to a particular 

department; 
 b.  to determine if a specific policy is fit for purpose; 

 c.  to satisfy itself that the Authority is working well with its partners in tackling a 
major issue; 

d.  to gather the views of specific stakeholders as part of an on-going scrutiny 
investigation / review; 

e. to explore possible solutions to an issue. 
 

Q) What outcome is the Committee seeking from the consideration of this 
item? 

a. To comment on the proposed budget and make suggestions to cabinet 
regarding the proposed budget’s ability to deliver the priorities of the council  

b. Identification of any causes for concern and note successes. 

Page 65



c. To receive an overview presentation. 
d. To gain an understanding of and to comment on a policy / strategy 
e. To explore ideas around the setting of budgets while considering the 

pressures facing each service. This also helps provide an overview of the 
policy frame work.  

f. For the scrutiny committee to gain an overview and refresh their knowledge of 
the wellbeing objectives / other plan / other strategy. 

g. Improvement in service delivery 
 

Q) What information does the Committee need to fulfil this role / achieve 
this outcome?  

What is the Committee trying to do? You might be trying to do some or all of 
the following i.e. establish facts; gather opinions; or explore new ideas / 
solutions. 

 

Q) Who should be invited to the meeting to provide the information? 

Depending on the information you need you might want to hear from a range 
of witnesses – e.g. Cabinet members, Senior Officers, Service users, and 
External partners – e.g. Police, Strategic Partners etc 

 

Q) Does the Committee need to ask for written representations? 

The Committee may wish to pose some questions to the Directorate / Cabinet 
Member / External Partner etc prior to the meeting. This may help in instances 
when the Committee is looking for something specific to be addressed. This 
will assist whoever is attending ensure that they have the information / answer 
ready for the meeting.  

 

Q) Which meeting format / venue would be most appropriate for the item 
and for the witnesses that will be invited to attend? 

 Meetings do not have to be held in a formal committee room environment. 
You may wish to hold occasional meetings out in the community e.g. 
community centres, sports facilities etc. It depends on the subject. Some 
people find the formal setting intimidating. Site visits for example may be more 
appropriate to see first-hand what the committee is investigating / obtaining 
information on e.g. waste sites, regeneration projects etc. 

 
Q) Method of Scrutiny? 

 Once Members have identified the matters they wish to scrutinise, 
consideration should be given to scoping the subject in more detail including 
the timing and method of scrutiny to be used. Support in this process will be 
given by the Scrutiny and Support Manager and Officer. Members may wish 
to: 

a. Consider an item at a single meeting; 

b. Consider an item over a series of meetings; 

c. Allocate the work to a small working group of Members (Task & Finish group) 
to investigate the issue over a period of 2-3 months (this may involve visits to 
see how services are working in practice); 

d. Undertake an Inquiry Day (or days); 

e. Undertake joint scrutiny with members of another Scrutiny Committee; 

Page 66



f. Invite expert witnesses to give their views; 

g. Seeking the views of service users/carers and/or the general public (public 
calls for evidence). 

 
 
 
Performance and Scrutiny Department 
MTCBC 
 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

Statement of Wellbeing 
& Focus on the Future: 
Wellbeing in our 
Community 

4th April 2018 MTCBC Website 
 
Full Council 4th April 2018  
 
 

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

No 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 67

http://democracy.merthyr.gov.uk/documents/g2694/Public%20reports%20pack%2004th-Apr-2018%2017.30%20Full%20Council.pdf?T=10&LLL=0


 

 

APPENDIX I 

Page 68



Regeneration and Public Protection Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2019/20 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

 
 

 
  

Date / Timing Overarching Item Officer & Cabinet Member  Scrutiny Focus  

4th June 2019 

Draft Committee Work 

Programme 2018/19 

 

Cllr Julian Amos (Chair) and 

Scrutiny Committee 

Members 

The Committee to discuss the draft Work Programme and make any required adjustments 

to this in order to agree its content and sign off the Work Programme for 2019-2020. 

Cyfarthfa Heritage Area Councillor Geraint Thomas/ 
Alyn Owen / Chris :Long/ 
Zoe Thomas 

Scrutiny and Challenge: -  Following the update report received by the Committee in July 
2018; a subsequent report has been requested on recent developments linked to the 
Cyfarthfa Heritage Area.  The report should contain details on the governance activities 
supporting delivery of this activity for the Committee to scrutinise.  It should also 
demonstrate how the area will feature as part of the Design Council for Wales’ Crucible 
Report. 
 

16th July 2019 

Refocus of the CCTV service 
area 

Councillor Geraint Thomas/ 
Alyn Owen / Paul Lewis / 
Ryan Evans 

Scrutiny and Challenge:-  Following the management of the CCTV service being transferred 
to the Community Safety and Regulatory Compliance Manager’s service area; Committee 
Members would like a report outlining any proposed changes to the way in which the CCTV 
will work.  The Committee also expects some detail on how the Council plans to use the 
system to generate intelligence that will strengthen the Council’s performance not only in 
community safety-related work but also in the broader sense. 
 

Anti-social Behaviour Councillor Geraint Thomas/ 
Alyn Owen / Paul Lewis / 
Ryan Evans 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - The Committee requests officers bring forward a report which will 
offer them an overview of the current status in relation to anti-social behaviour and its 
impact on residents of and visitors to Merthyr Tydfil County Borough.  The report should 
contain the latest available data  on a local and national level in relation to this topic.  
Members would welcome an update on the current funding situation re: this; as well as an 
overview of partnership arrangements supporting delivery of activity addressing this issue. 

Work Programme Chair and Committee 
Members 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - The Committee will review the items due to be presented at the 
next Committee meeting, ensuring a clear brief of the Committee’s expectations are 
available to report authors who will be drafting the report. 
 

P
age 69



Regeneration and Public Protection Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2019/20 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

 
Date / Timing Overarching Item Officer & Cabinet Member  Scrutiny Focus  

10th September 
2019 

Self-Evaluation Findings: 
Question 1: Outcomes 
 

Cllr Geraint Thomas / Alyn 
Owen / Chris Long  / Paul 
Lewis 

Scrutiny and Challenge:  Made up of 3 key questions the re-focused self-evaluation process 
supports Chief Officers and service teams to reflect on what they achieved and identify and 
set priorities for improvement.  The Committee will receive the service’s response to the 
first of the key questions which is linked to Outcomes.  They will be required to scrutinise 
the proforma outlining the findings of the process (along with relevant supporting 
evidence); and review the validity of the judgment ascribed.   
 

Destination Development Cllr Geraint Thomas / Alyn 
Owen / Chris Long  / Ryan 
Barry 

Scrutiny and Challenge:   The Scrutiny Committee will receive a report on the progress 
made linked to the work undertaken by the Council linked to ongoing Destination 
Development activity.  The Committee will scrutinise the report to identify progress made 
to date; explore the impact of these activities on the ecomony; and the opportunities 
these activities make on jobs/careers and training and skills development  

Committee Work 

Programme 2019/2020 

 

Cllr Julian Amos (Chair) and 

Scrutiny Committee 

Members 

The Committee to discuss the draft Work Programme and make any required adjustments 

to this in order to agree its content and sign off the Work Programme for 2019-2020. 

 

22nd October 
2019 

Findings of WAO 
examination visit 2018-19 

WAO officers/Councillor 

Geraint Thomas/Alyn 

Owen/Chris Long/Andrew 

Mogford 

Scrutiny and Challenge:   Following an examination visit made by Welsh Audit Office (WAO) 

to review the Working Life theme with a particular focus on the component ‘Making Skills 

work for Merthyr Tydfil: developing the workforce of the future’; officer from WAO will 

present key findings noted during the examination visit directly to Committee Members 

Cwm Taf Youth Offending 
Service (YOS) 

Councillor Geraint Thomas/ 
Alyn Owen/ Paul Lewis / 
Lyndon Lewis (Cwm Taf 
YOS) 

Scrutiny and Challenge:   Following an update received by the Committee in April 2019; 
members requested a report be received detailing the work being undertaken by the Youth 
Offending Service within Merthyr Tydfil.   The Committee expects most up-to-date data to 
be included; and that this information is put into the context of the key interventions being 
delivered by Cwm Taf YOS; and the impact of these. 
 

Substance Misuse Councillor Geraint Thomas/ 
Alyn Owen/Paul Lewis / Ceri 

Ford (RCT CBC) 

Scrutiny and Challenge:  Following an update received by the Committee in April 2019; 
members requested a report be received focusing on the specific situation in relation to 
Merthyr Tydfil regarding substance misuse.  The Committee expects the most up-to-date 
information for the County Borough to be included; and that this information covers the use 
of both alcohol and illegal substances.  The report should also offer an outline of the key 
interventions being delivered and the impact of these. 
 

P
age 70



Regeneration and Public Protection Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2019/20 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

 

 

Date / Timing Overarching Item Officer & Cabinet Member  Scrutiny Focus  

3rd December 
2019 

 
MEETING 

CANCELLED 

Cwm Taf Youth Offending 
Service (YOS) 

Paul Lewis / Lyndon Lewis 
(Cwm Taf YOS) 

Scrutiny and Challenge:   Following an update received by the Committee in April 2019; 
members requested a report be received detailing the work being undertaken by the Youth 
Offending Service within Merthyr Tydfil.   The Committee expects most up-to-date data to 
be included; and that this information is put into the context of the key interventions being 
delivered by Cwm Taf YOS; and the impact of these. 

Homelessness Strategy Cllr Geraint Thomas / Alyn 
Owen/ Suzanne Lewis-
Abbott  

Scrutiny and Challenge:  Following approval of the Council’s Homelessness Strategy by Full 
Council on 17th December 2018, the Committee has requested a report be brought back to 
identify what impact had been noted as a result of the strategy being rolled out.  The 
Committee expects any relevant performance data to be included in the report; along with 
any details of issues/barriers experienced and how these have been overcome. 

Work Programme Chair and Committee 
Members 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - The Committee will review the items due to be presented at the 
next Committee meeting, ensuring a clear brief of the Committee’s expectations are 
available to report authors who will be drafting the report. 

14th January 
2020 

Self-Evaluation Findings: 
Question 2: Provision and 
Service Delivery 

Cllr Geraint Thomas / Alyn 
Owen / Chris Long  / Paul 
Lewis 

Scrutiny and Challenge:  Made up of 3 key questions the re-focused self-evaluation process 
supports Chief Officers and service teams to reflect on what they achieved and identify and 
set priorities for improvement.  The Committee will receive the service’s response to the 
second key question which is linked to Service Delivery.  They will be required to scrutinise 
the proforma outlining the findings of the process (along with relevant supporting 
evidence); and review the validity of the judgment ascribed.   

Homelessness Strategy Cllr Geraint Thomas / Chris 
Long / Suzanne Lewis-
Abbott / Cerys Clark  

Scrutiny and Challenge:  Following approval of the Council’s Homelessness Strategy by Full 
Council on 17th December 2018, the Committee has requested a report be brought back to 
identify what impact had been noted as a result of the strategy being rolled out.  The 
Committee expects any relevant performance data to be included in the report; along with 
any details of issues/barriers experienced and how these have been overcome. 

Work Programme Chair and Committee 
Members 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - The Committee will review the items due to be presented at the 
next Committee meeting, ensuring a clear brief of the Committee’s expectations are 
available to report authors who will be drafting the report. 
 

P
age 71



Regeneration and Public Protection Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2019/20 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

 

 

Date / Timing Overarching Item Officer & Cabinet Member  Scrutiny Focus  

3rd March 2020 

Self-Evaluation Findings: 
Question 3: Leadership and 
Management 

Cllr Geraint Thomas / Alyn 
Owen / Chris Long  / Paul 
Lewis 

Scrutiny and Challenge:  Made up of 3 key questions the re-focused self-evaluation process 
supports Chief Officers and service teams to reflect on what they achieved and identify and 
set priorities for improvement.  The Committee will receive the service’s response to the 
last of the key questions which is linked to Leadership and Management.  They will be 
required to scrutinise the proforma outlining the findings of the process (along with 
relevant supporting evidence); and review the validity of the judgment ascribed.   
 

Continued Development of 
the Town Centre and the 
Night-time Economy 

Cllr Geraint Thomas / Alyn 
Owen / Chris Long / Paul 
Lewis 

Scrutiny and Challenge: -  Following an report received by Members in August 2019; the 
Committee requires a further report to be presented outlining the developments linked to 
the development of the Town Centre; and the Night-time Economy.  The report should 
contain status updates in relation to the ‘next steps’ identified when the topic was 
previously brought to scrutiny: 
 The status of the Merthyr After Dark strategy and the practical implications of delivering this on 

communities; 

 The status and membership of the Evening Economy Board; and the Board’s key priorities; and 

 What specifically the Council’s Regeneration and Public Protection Teams will be contributing to 
delivery of the strategy 

Town Centre Master Plan 
 
 
 

Cllr Geraint Thomas / Alyn 
Owen / Chris Long / Paul 
Lewis 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - Members have requested a report be brought before the 
Committee to outline the key elements of the latest iteration of the Town Centre Master 
Plan.  Updates on key activities such as the Building Enhancement Scheme; developments 
linked to transport infrastructure should be included in the report. 

Work Programme Chair and Committee 
Members 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - The Committee will review the items due to be presented at the 
next Committee meeting, ensuring a clear brief of the Committee’s expectations are 
available to report authors who will be drafting the report. 

28th April 2020 
 
 
 
 

Third sector funding and 
support 

To be confirmed Scrutiny and Challenge: - The Committee acknowledged Governance committee are 
undertaking a piece of work around this issue.  However, Members of the Regeneration and 
Public Protection Committee Members wish to review and discuss the contribution third 
sector organisations make to the activities which are brought before them on a regular 
basis.  Discussions will focus on how funding cuts experienced over time have impacted on 
working arrangements; the level of services and activities being delivered generally and, in 
particular, how third sector funding and support has been impacted in relation to 
regeneration, cultural and public protection activities.  

P
age 72



Regeneration and Public Protection Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2019/20 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

 

 

 
Additional Topics for Review 

 

To be discussed Hoover Master Plan 
 
 

Public awareness around the proposed development of the Hoover site is growing and people are keen to find 
out more about what is being discussed, what impact any development would have on the people living in the 
areas around the Hoover site as well as to find out what role the Council will play in this.   

To be discussed Merthyr Tydfil’s Hidden 
History 

During a number of scrutiny sessions during 2018-19; Merthyr Tydfil’s Hidden History had been identified as an 
possible area of interest by the Committee Chair.  

To be discussed Violent Crime: Sexual 
Violence 

The Committee has requested a report on this topic, which would include both local and national data on sexual 
violence.  The report should outline the impact of sexual violence on citizens (i.e.) STIs; pregnancies; impact on 
mental health and offer basic detail on the support structure available for victims both at the time incidents 
occur and in the longer-term. 

To be discussed Merthyr Tydfil Leisure Trust The Committee seek an update on the activities being delivered by Merthyr Tydfil Leisure Trust with a specific 
focus on how these activities compliment or impact upon the services delivered by MTCBC. 

 

Date / Timing Overarching Item Officer & Cabinet Member  Scrutiny Focus  

28th April 2020 

Substance Misuse Councillor Geraint Thomas/ 
Paul Lewis / Ceri Ford (RCT 
CBC) 

Scrutiny and Challenge:  Following a verbal update received by the Committee in October 
2019; members requested a written report be received focusing on the specific situation in 
relation to Merthyr Tydfil regarding substance misuse.  The Committee requests up-to-date 
information to be included; and that this information covers the use of both alcohol and 
illegal substances.  The report should also offer an outline of the key interventions being 
delivered and the impact of these. 
 

Work Programme Chair and Committee 
Members 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - The Committee will review the items due to be presented at the 
next Committee meeting, ensuring a clear brief of the Committee’s expectations are 
available to report authors who will be drafting the report. 
 

P
age 73



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Homelessness Strategy Update
	4 Corporate Self-Evaluation - Question 2 (Provision and Service Delivery)
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2

	5 Work Programme 2019-2020
	Appendix 1


